
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Tel: 0345 605 3010

 

24 November 2020

Dear Councillor,

The next Meeting of the Council will be held virtually on Wednesday, 2 
December 2020 at 6.30 pm.

The Agenda for the Meeting is attached at Appendix ‘A’.

Yours faithfully,

M. Trillo
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below:

Public Document Pack



APPENDIX A

Prayers will be offered prior to the commencement of the meeting.
1. Apologies for absence, if any. 

2. Minutes of the previous meetings 

2 .1 Full Council - 26 February 2020 (Pages 7 - 16)
2 .2 Council Assembly - 9 September 2020 (Pages 17 - 20)

3. Urgent items of business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman). 

4. Declarations of interest 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

5. Chairman's or Leader's announcements and correspondence, if any. 

6. Receipt of petitions, if any. 

7. Decisions made under the Council's urgency provisions 
 18 March 2020 - Temporary Management Structure and Appointment of 

Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer.

 18 March 2020 - Appointment of Authorised officers - Neil Rodgers (Executive 
Director - Place) and Claire Hazeldene (Acting Executive Director – Finance and 
Customer Services).

 30 March 2020 - The affixing of the Council’s Common Seal be attested by the 
Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer or by some other person authorised by 
either of them in writing to do so.

 7 May 2020 - Dispensation granted to all councillors for non-attendance at 
meetings until 30 September 2020.

Recommendation

That the decisions be noted.
8. To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and 

Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any. 

8 .1 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel - Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Report 2019-2020 (Pages 21 - 30)
Recommendation

That the report be noted.
8 .2 Standards Committee - Annual Report (Pages 31 - 38)

Recommendation

That the report be noted.
8 .3 Audit and Accounts Committee - Annual Treasury Management Report 

2019/20 (Pages 39 - 54)



Recommendation

That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 be recommended for 
approval.

8 .4 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update 31 May 2020 
(Pages 55 - 64)
Recommendation

That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31st 
May 2020.

8 .5 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update - 30 
September 2020 (Pages 65 - 80)
Recommendation

That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 30th 
September 2020.

8 .6 Audit and Accounts Committee - 2019/20 Annual Review of the Effectiveness 
of the Audit & Accounts Committee (Pages 81 - 98)
Recommendation

That the Audit & Accounts Committee’s terms of reference be approved.
9. Recommendations from meetings in the interim period prior to the Council Meeting, 

if any. 

10. Notices of Motion in accordance with Procedure Rule No. 8, if any. 

10 .1 Organisation  of Local Government - Cllr S. Ralphs MBE 
“Councillors will be aware of recent reports in the media with regards to 
potential changes to the organisation of Local Government including 
reference to the creation of a ‘Greater Stoke’ unitary authority.

In the Staffordshire Moorlands we have a strong track record of working in 
partnership with Staffordshire County Council, town/parish councils and the 
voluntary sector to improve the quality of life for our residents and ensuring 
that the voices of our communities are heard.  The Coronavirus Pandemic 
has illustrated how we can successfully work together to support the 
population in the Staffordshire Moorlands by quickly addressing local needs 
whether by delivering food parcels to vulnerable people or by issuing grants 
to businesses.  

I therefore propose that this Council writes to Government to make clear our 
view that the current two tier working between Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council and Staffordshire County Council be retained and that there 
should not be a move to create a ‘Greater Stoke’ unitary authority.”

10 .2 Use of fireworks - Cllr. L. Malyon 
“Fireworks are used by people throughout the year to mark different events. 
While they can bring much enjoyment to some people, they can cause 
significant problems and fear for other people and animals. They can be a 



source of fear and distress for many animals (including pet animals, farm 
livestock and wildlife). Animals affected not only suffer psychological distress 
but can also cause themselves injuries – sometimes very serious ones – as 
they attempt to run away or hide from the noise. I therefore propose that this 
Council resolves:

 To require all public firework displays within the local authority boundaries 
to be advertised in advance of the event, allowing residents to take 
precautions for their animals and vulnerable people 

 To actively promote a public awareness campaign about the impact of 
fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable people – including the 
precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks 

 To write to the UK Government urging them to introduce legislation to limit 
the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90dB for those sold to the public 
for private displays 

 To encourage local suppliers of fireworks to stock ‘quieter’ fireworks for 
public display.”

10 .3 Ban on the burning of peatlands - Cllr J. Porter 
“Peatland occupies around 12% of the land area in the UK and is a natural 
carbon sponge. Our peatlands are worth around 15 years of UK carbon 
emissions and are a vital carbon lock. They are the UK’s rainforests and a 
vital part of addressing climate change. 
 
Unfortunately, they can currently be developed on, dug up and used for 
horticulture, or burned. The lack of protection has resulted in many peatland 
fires in recent years, including the fire at The Roaches in the summer of 
2018. Staffordshire Wildlife Trust, Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service and 
Staffordshire Police have been working hard to address this locally. 

Research has found that burning peatland degrades habitats, releases 
carbon emissions, reduces biodiversity and increases flood risk. The burning 
of peatland is believed to be the most environmentally damaging of this 
activity. 

Peatlands are an important habitat for plants and wildlife, can store water to 
prevent flooding and also stores carbon if it is in a healthy state. But when 
peatland is degraded, drained and burned it releases carbon, worsening 
climate change. 

As a District Council, we call upon the Government to introduce an outright 
ban on the practice of peatland burning and to ensure the protection of 
peatlands across the UK for the sake of future generations. It would 
demonstrate the UK’s climate leadership in the run up to next year’s UN 
climate talks being held in the UK and would show the Prime Minister’s 
commitment to protecting 30 percent of the UK’s land for nature.”

11. To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any. 
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.)

12. To consider any political group appointments or changes to membership, if any. 



13. Exclusion of the Press and Public: 
The Chairman to move:-

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 
Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.”

14. To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any. 

15. To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any. 
At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.)



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 26 FEBRUARY 2020
PRESENT: Councillor K Flunder (Chair) 

Councillors J Aberley, R Alcock, C J S Atkins, G Bentley, G Bond, 
M Bowen, C Brady, B Cawley, S Coleman, J Davies, M A Deaville, 
B Emery, E Fallows, M Gledhill, T Hall, A Hart, N Hawkins, G Heath, 
I Herdman, T Holmes, K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, A Hulme, 
K J Jackson, B Johnson, J T Jones, I Lawson, L D Lea, L A Malyon, 
T McNicol, L Page, I Plant, H Plimley, J Porter, D Price, 
S E Ralphs MBE, J Redfern, T Riley, P Roberts, P Routledge, 
J Salt, S Scalise, D Shaw, H Sheldon MBE, L Swindlehurst, 
P Taylor, E Wain, R Ward, I Whitehouse, P Wilkinson, P Wood, 
M Worthington and N Yates

APOLOGIES: Councillors P Elkin and K Martin

46 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 22 January 2020 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

47 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE PROVIDED TO 
THE CHAIRMAN).

The Leader welcomed Cllr Heath back to the Council and also welcomed Neil 
Rodgers (Executive Director – Place) following his appointment.

48 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declarations were made:-

Agenda Item Members Declaring 
Interest Nature of Interest

11. Churnet Valley - 
Support to become an 
Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty

Cllrs Fallows and 
Johnson

Land owners in the Churnet 
Valley  

Page 7

Agenda Item 2.1



49 CHAIRMAN'S OR LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE, IF 
ANY.

The Chairman thanked councillors (particularly Cllrs Cawley and Gledhill for their 
assistance) for attending his recent charity quiz night which raised approximately 
£700.  Tickets were available for the Charity Ball to be held on 28th March 2020.

The Leader of the Council proposed that future meetings of the Community 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel take place in the evening.  It was agreed by members 
that this change would take effect from May 2020.

50 TO CONSIDER AND DEBATE ANY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE CABINET, 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS AND COMMITTEES, IF ANY.

50a CABINET - 2020/21 BUDGET & MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2020/21 TO 
2023/24

The report presented the proposed Budget for 2020/21, updated Medium-Term 
Financial Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24, Capital Strategy 2020/21, proposed Fees and 
Charges for 2020/21 and Procurement Forward Plan 2020/21.

In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)(Amendment) 
Regulations 2014, councillors voted as follows:

Those voting FOR:

Councillors Aberley, Alcock, Bentley, Bond, Bowen, Davies, Deaville, Emery, 
Fallows, Flunder, Hall, Hart, Hawkins, Heath, Herdman, Holmes, Hughes, Hulme, 
Johnson, Jones, Lawson, Lea, Malyon, McNicol, Plant, Plimley, Porter, Ralphs, 
Redfern, Riley , Roberts, Routledge, Scalise, Shaw, Sheldon, Wain, Ward, 
Whitehouse and Worthington. (39)

ABSTENTIONS:

Councillors Atkins, Brady, Cawley, Coleman, Gledhill, Hoptroff, Jackson, Page, 
Price, Salt, Swindlehurst, Taylor, Wilkinson, Wood and Yates (15)

No councillor voted against.

RESOLVED:

1.  That the General Fund Budget for 2020/21 as detailed in Appendix A (section 8) 
be approved.

2.  That the revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2020/21 to 2023/24) as detailed in 
Appendix A, including the revised Capital Programme (attached at Annex A) be 
approved.

3.  That the Capital Strategy 2020/21 as set out in Appendix B be approved.

4.  That the proposed Fees and Charges for 2020/21 as detailed in Appendix C be 
approved.

Page 8

file:///C:/Users/chazeldene/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Documents%20and%20Settings/cstone/Local%20Settings/astokes/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/9RF23P99/SMDC%20-%20Budget%202012-13%20&%20MTFP%20App%20A%20(15-02-12).doc


5.  That the proposed Procurement Forward Plan for 2020/21, providing the authority 
to procure based on procurement activity detailed in Appendix D be approved.

6.  That a Band D Council Tax of £153.40 for 2020/21 (an increase of 1.9% from 
2019/20) be approved.

7.  That a Band D Council Tax of £52.92 for Leek and £10.64 for Biddulph for 
2020/21 (an increase of 1.9% from 2019/20) in respect of Special District 
Expenses be approved.

8.  That the Chief Finance Officer's view that the level of reserves are adequate for 
the Council based on this budget and the circumstances in place at the time of 
preparing it (Appendix A Annex E) be noted.

50b AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE

RESOLVED:

That the current Treasury Management position as at 31st December 2019 be noted.

50c AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
STATEMENT 2020/21

RESOLVED:

That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2020/21 be 
approved.

51 SETTING THE COUNCIL TAX

RESOLVED:

That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council in accordance with 
Sections 31A and 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by 
the Localism Act 2011): 

(a) £30,042,339 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 
for the items set out in Section 31A (2) of the Act. (Gross 
Expenditure on General Fund Services, Special District 
Expenses and Parish Precepts)

(b) £23,162,020 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 
for the items set out in Section 31A (3) of the Act. (Gross Income 
including External Financing and the Use of Reserves)

(c) £6,880,319 being the amount by which the aggregate at (a) above exceeds 
the aggregate at (b) above calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31A (4) of the Act as its Council Tax 
requirement for the year (Amount to be Funded from Council 
Tax)

(d) £207.08 being the amount at (c) above divided by the tax base, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31 (B) of 
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year. 
(Average Local Council Tax)Page 9



(e) Appendix B being Council Tax for the SMDC District divided by the tax base 
plus the Parish Precept and any amounts of special items 
relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council’s area divided 
the local tax base. (Band D Charges for each Parish)

(f) Appendix C being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at (e) above 
by the number which, in the proportion applicable to dwellings 
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which 
in that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in valuation 
band D, calculated by the Council as the amounts to be taken 
into account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings 
listed in different valuation bands (Charges for all Bands)

(g)  Appendix D being the aggregate of the local charges in (f) above and the 
amounts levied by major precepting authorities. (Total Council 
Tax charge for each Band in each Parish)

APPENDIX B

Local Council Tax at Band D – 2020/21

Parish £
Alstonefield 202.99
Alton 183.71
Bagnall 176.77
Biddulph 221.29
Blore 172.00
Bradnop 165.03
Brown Edge 181.23
Butterton 202.60
Caverswall 173.92
Cheadle 230.05
Checkley 194.77
Cheddleton 184.68
Consall 171.89
Cotton 209.15
Dilhorne 176.06
Draycott 180.28
Endon 176.13
Farley 187.55
Fawfieldhead 197.79
Forsbrook 179.74
Grindon 181.06
Heathylee 164.43
Heaton 165.59
Hollinsclough 172.80
Horton 169.49
Ilam 172.91
Ipstones 197.61Page 10



Kingsley 185.96
Leek 234.24
Leekfrith 163.34
Longnor 198.66
Longsdon 171.13
Oakamoor 181.12
Onecote 184.41
Quarnford 174.23
Rushton 167.74
Sheen 174.70
Tittesworth 174.40
Warslow 204.78
Waterhouses 196.62
Werrington 205.84
Wetton 191.68
Whiston 182.71

APPENDIX C

Local Council Tax All Bands – 2020/21

Parish BAND 
A

BAND 
B

BAND 
C

BAND 
D

BAND 
E

BAND 
F

BAND 
G

BAND 
H

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Alstonefield 135.33 157.88 180.44 202.99 248.10 293.21 338.32 405.98
Alton 122.48 142.88 163.30 183.71 224.54 265.36 306.19 367.42
Bagnall 117.85 137.49 157.13 176.77 216.05 255.34 294.62 353.54
Biddulph 147.53 172.12 196.71 221.29 270.46 319.64 368.82 442.58
Blore 114.67 133.78 152.89 172.00 210.22 248.45 286.67 344.00
Bradnop 110.02 128.36 146.70 165.03 201.70 238.38 275.05 330.06
Brown Edge 120.82 140.96 161.10 181.23 221.50 261.78 302.05 362.46
Butterton 135.07 157.58 180.09 202.60 247.62 292.65 337.67 405.20
Caverswall 115.95 135.27 154.60 173.92 212.57 251.22 289.87 347.84
Cheadle 153.37 178.93 204.49 230.05 281.17 332.30 383.42 460.10
Checkley 129.85 151.49 173.13 194.77 238.05 281.34 324.62 389.54
Cheddleton 123.12 143.64 164.16 184.68 225.72 266.76 307.80 369.36
Consall 114.60 133.69 152.80 171.89 210.09 248.29 286.49 343.78
Cotton 139.44 162.67 185.92 209.15 255.63 302.11 348.59 418.30
Dilhorne 117.38 136.93 156.50 176.06 215.19 254.31 293.44 352.12
Draycott 120.19 140.22 160.25 180.28 220.34 260.41 300.47 360.56
Endon 117.42 136.99 156.56 176.13 215.27 254.41 293.55 352.26
Farley 125.04 145.87 166.72 187.55 229.23 270.91 312.59 375.10
Fawfieldhead 131.86 153.84 175.82 197.79 241.74 285.70 329.65 395.58
Forsbrook 119.83 139.80 159.77 179.74 219.68 259.63 299.57 359.48
Grindon 120.71 140.82 160.95 181.06 221.30 261.53 301.77 362.12
Heathylee 109.62 127.89 146.16 164.43 200.97 237.51 274.05 328.86
Heaton 110.40 128.79 147.20 165.59 202.39 239.19 275.99 331.18
Hollinsclough 115.20 134.40 153.60 172.80 211.20 249.60 288.00 345.60
Horton 113.00 131.82 150.66 169.49 207.16 244.82 282.49 338.98
Ilam 115.28 134.48 153.70 172.91 211.34 249.76 288.19 345.82Page 11



Ipstones 131.74 153.70 175.66 197.61 241.52 285.44 329.35 395.22
Kingsley 123.98 144.63 165.30 185.96 227.29 268.61 309.94 371.92
Leek 156.16 182.19 208.22 234.24 286.29 338.35 390.40 468.48
Leekfrith 108.90 127.04 145.20 163.34 199.64 235.94 272.24 326.68
Longnor 132.44 154.51 176.59 198.66 242.81 286.96 331.10 397.32
Longsdon 114.09 133.10 152.12 171.13 209.16 247.19 285.22 342.26
Oakamoor 120.75 140.87 161.00 181.12 221.37 261.62 301.87 362.24
Onecote 122.94 143.43 163.92 184.41 225.39 266.37 307.35 368.82
Quarnford 116.16 135.51 154.88 174.23 212.95 251.67 290.39 348.46
Rushton 111.83 130.46 149.11 167.74 205.02 242.29 279.57 335.48
Sheen 116.47 135.88 155.29 174.70 213.52 252.35 291.17 349.40
Tittesworth 116.27 135.64 155.03 174.40 213.16 251.91 290.67 348.80
Warslow 136.52 159.27 182.03 204.78 250.29 295.80 341.30 409.56
Waterhouses 131.08 152.93 174.78 196.62 240.31 284.01 327.70 393.24
Werrington 137.23 160.10 182.97 205.84 251.58 297.33 343.07 411.68
Wetton 127.79 149.08 170.39 191.68 234.28 276.87 319.47 383.36
Whiston 121.81 142.11 162.41 182.71 223.31 263.92 304.52 365.42

APPENDIX D

Total Council Tax – 2020/21
 

Parish BAND A BAND B BAND C BAND D BAND E BAND F BAND 
G BAND H

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Alstonefield 1,200.85 1,400.99 1,601.14 1,801.27 2,201.55 2,601.84 3,002.12 3,602.54
Alton 1,188.00 1,385.99 1,584.00 1,781.99 2,177.99 2,573.99 2,969.99 3,563.98
Bagnall 1,183.37 1,380.60 1,577.83 1,775.05 2,169.50 2,563.97 2,958.42 3,550.10
Biddulph 1,213.05 1,415.23 1,617.41 1,819.57 2,223.91 2,628.27 3,032.62 3,639.14
Blore 1,180.19 1,376.89 1,573.59 1,770.28 2,163.67 2,557.08 2,950.47 3,540.56
Bradnop 1,175.54 1,371.47 1,567.40 1,763.31 2,155.15 2,547.01 2,938.85 3,526.62
Brown Edge 1,186.34 1,384.07 1,581.80 1,779.51 2,174.95 2,570.41 2,965.85 3,559.02
Butterton 1,200.59 1,400.69 1,600.79 1,800.88 2,201.07 2,601.28 3,001.47 3,601.76
Caverswall 1,181.47 1,378.38 1,575.30 1,772.20 2,166.02 2,559.85 2,953.67 3,544.40
Cheadle 1,218.89 1,422.04 1,625.19 1,828.33 2,234.62 2,640.93 3,047.22 3,656.66
Checkley 1,195.37 1,394.60 1,593.83 1,793.05 2,191.50 2,589.97 2,988.42 3,586.10
Cheddleton 1,188.64 1,386.75 1,584.86 1,782.96 2,179.17 2,575.39 2,971.60 3,565.92
Consall 1,180.12 1,376.80 1,573.50 1,770.17 2,163.54 2,556.92 2,950.29 3,540.34
Cotton 1,204.96 1,405.78 1,606.62 1,807.43 2,209.08 2,610.74 3,012.39 3,614.86
Dilhorne 1,182.90 1,380.04 1,577.20 1,774.34 2,168.64 2,562.94 2,957.24 3,548.68
Draycott 1,185.71 1,383.33 1,580.95 1,778.56 2,173.79 2,569.04 2,964.27 3,557.12
Endon 1,182.94 1,380.10 1,577.26 1,774.41 2,168.72 2,563.04 2,957.35 3,548.82
Farley 1,190.56 1,388.98 1,587.42 1,785.83 2,182.68 2,579.54 2,976.39 3,571.66
Fawfieldhead 1,197.38 1,396.95 1,596.52 1,796.07 2,195.19 2,594.33 2,993.45 3,592.14
Forsbrook 1,185.35 1,382.91 1,580.47 1,778.02 2,173.13 2,568.26 2,963.37 3,556.04
Grindon 1,186.23 1,383.93 1,581.65 1,779.34 2,174.75 2,570.16 2,965.57 3,558.68
Heathylee 1,175.14 1,371.00 1,566.86 1,762.71 2,154.42 2,546.14 2,937.85 3,525.42
Heaton 1,175.92 1,371.90 1,567.90 1,763.87 2,155.84 2,547.82 2,939.79 3,527.74
Hollinsclough 1,180.72 1,377.51 1,574.30 1,771.08 2,164.65 2,558.23 2,951.80 3,542.16
Horton 1,178.52 1,374.93 1,571.36 1,767.77 2,160.61 2,553.45 2,946.29 3,535.54
Ilam 1,180.80 1,377.59 1,574.40 1,771.19 2,164.79 2,558.39 2,951.99 3,542.38Page 12



Ipstones 1,197.26 1,396.81 1,596.36 1,795.89 2,194.97 2,594.07 2,993.15 3,591.78
Kingsley 1,189.50 1,387.74 1,586.00 1,784.24 2,180.74 2,577.24 2,973.74 3,568.48
Leek 1,221.68 1,425.30 1,628.92 1,832.52 2,239.74 2,646.98 3,054.20 3,665.04
Leekfrith 1,174.42 1,370.15 1,565.90 1,761.62 2,153.09 2,544.57 2,936.04 3,523.24
Longnor 1,197.96 1,397.62 1,597.29 1,796.94 2,196.26 2,595.59 2,994.90 3,593.88
Longsdon 1,179.61 1,376.21 1,572.82 1,769.41 2,162.61 2,555.82 2,949.02 3,538.82
Oakamoor 1,186.27 1,383.98 1,581.70 1,779.40 2,174.82 2,570.25 2,965.67 3,558.80
Onecote 1,188.46 1,386.54 1,584.62 1,782.69 2,178.84 2,575.00 2,971.15 3,565.38
Quarnford 1,181.68 1,378.62 1,575.58 1,772.51 2,166.40 2,560.30 2,954.19 3,545.02
Rushton 1,177.35 1,373.57 1,569.81 1,766.02 2,158.47 2,550.92 2,943.37 3,532.04
Sheen 1,181.99 1,378.99 1,575.99 1,772.98 2,166.97 2,560.98 2,954.97 3,545.96
Tittesworth 1,181.79 1,378.75 1,575.73 1,772.68 2,166.61 2,560.54 2,954.47 3,545.36
Warslow 1,202.04 1,402.38 1,602.73 1,803.06 2,203.74 2,604.43 3,005.10 3,606.12
Waterhouses 1,196.60 1,396.04 1,595.48 1,794.90 2,193.76 2,592.64 2,991.50 3,589.80
Werrington 1,202.75 1,403.21 1,603.67 1,804.12 2,205.03 2,605.96 3,006.87 3,608.24
Wetton 1,193.31 1,392.19 1,591.09 1,789.96 2,187.73 2,585.50 2,983.27 3,579.92
Whiston 1,187.33 1,385.22 1,583.11 1,780.99 2,176.76 2,572.55 2,968.32 3,561.98

52 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/2021

RESOLVED:

That the Pay Policy Statement for 2020/2021 be approved.

53 NOTICES OF MOTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULE NO. 8, IF ANY.

54 CHURNET VALLEY - SUPPORT TO BECOME AN AREA OF OUTSTANDING 
NATURAL BEAUTY - COUNCILLOR J. ABERLEY

“As everyone in this room should be aware, the Churnet Valley is one of the most 
important features of our district. Not only does it provide a unique environment for 
bio-diversity, it is one of the most popular tourist destinations for visitors to the 
Staffordshire Moorlands. Following the Glover report published in 2019, the Churnet 
Valley is one of three areas in the country that the Government have stated have 
made persuasive cases to deserve further consideration to gain support to become 
an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

To support the case, I would like to propose that Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council, follows the example set by the Leader, and by our MP Karen Bradley in re-
affirming our full support for the status, and to send a supportive letter from this 
council to the Churnet Valley Conservation Society to go into the next round of 
documents submitted to the Government to signify that there is support across the 
full district for the designation.”

Having been SECONDED, upon being put to the vote, the PROPOSAL was 
CARRIED unanimously.

RESOLVED:

That Staffordshire Moorlands District Council re-affirms its full support for the status 
of Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty for the Churnet Valley and that a supportive 
letter be sent by the Council to the Churnet Valley Conservation Society to go into 
the next round of documents submitted to the Government to signify that there is 
support across the full district for the designation.Page 13



55 TO ANSWER QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER PROCEDURE RULE NO. 10, IF ANY.

1. Question to the Portfolio Holder for Environment received from Councillor 
Price:

"Staffordshire Moorlands District Council's currently charges residents £31 each for 
new recycling bins.  This charge is levied if someone moves to a new home where 
there are no bins provided, or if they currently have a smaller 140 litre bin and want 
and are entitled to a larger 240 litre bin. Can the portfolio holder please confirm the 
total revenue generated from this charge in the last year?”

Response:

“A charge of £31 per bin is currently levied for a new or replacement wheeled bin, be 
it for general rubbish, recycling or organic waste, in 2018-19 this charge was £30.75 
per bin. In 2018-19, £14,833 of income was generated through fees levied for new or 
replacement bins. In 2019-20 to date, we have generated £12,828.50 through these 
charges.

The charge levied to customers reflects the costs incurred by the Council in regards 
to supply and delivery of a bin. In December, the Council made a decision to alter 
the way it will in future collect paper from homes. From Monday 30th March, 
residents will be able to place paper in their grey bin rather than presenting it in a 
reusable bag as they do now. As a result of these changes, we have committed to 
provide a free of charge larger recycling bin to those properties who regularly fill their 
existing bin, ensuring that as a result of these changes we are not financially 
inconveniencing residents.”

2. Question to the Leader of the Council received from Councillor Price:

“Can we please have an update on the progress of the consultation regarding the 
proposed changes to Leek Trestle Market, as promised at the January 2020 Service 
Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel?”

Response:

“We are now at the stage of looking at the design and costing of the proposed new 
stalls.  The consultation process will then follow normal procedures, such as meeting 
with existing traders, possible new traders, reports to Cabinet, relevant scrutiny 
panels etc.”  In response to supplementary questions the Leader of the Council 
confirmed that current and potential stakeholders of the hall would be included in the 
consultation and that the Council was not intending to sell the Market Hall.

3. Question to the Portfolio Holder for Communities received from Councillor 
Atkins:

“What repairs to the roof and other areas are being carried out at the Daisy Haye 
development in Leek? What are the costs and are they covered by the builders’ 
warranty? What compensation may adversely affected residents claim and from 
whom?”

Page 14



Response:

“Following the issue of the roof at Daisy Haye being raised by Cllr Atkins at an 
Overview & Scrutiny meeting last year I raised the issue at the Ascent Board and 
as a result the Board gets regular updates on progress.

Problems associated with the roof covering at Daisy Haye have been experienced 
since its handover from the contractor.  Whilst ensuring the welfare and safety of 
individual residents is maintained, YHG is also continuing to communicate with 
the on-site care provider, HICA to ensure the maintenance of care provision more 
generally.

A structural investigation was completed in line with the requirements of insurers 
and a scheme to rectify the issues was agreed. The works include the complete 
replacement of the roof. The tender was completed for the main contractor and 
work has commenced on site. A temporary roof structure will be erected over the 
building as the roof is replaced. 

Arrangements have been made to decant residents while work to the roof is 
undertaken above their apartments. This is phased and limited to the top floor 
residents.

The other issues with regard to the costs and compensation are matters of a 
confidential nature but if there are any specific questions from residents then I am 
more than happy to take them up with Your Housing in order to get them a 
response.”  In response to supplementary questions the Portfolio Holder stated 
that the costs of the refurbishment would be included in the warranty, that he 
would contact Your Housing Group with regards to details of other properties built 
by the contractor to establish if there were further issues and that he would also 
take up tenants queries on their behalf and ask for a dedicated number from Your 
Housing for tenants requiring to claim compensation.

The meeting closed at 8.20 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date
Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL ASSEMBLY MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 9 SEPTEMBER 2020
PRESENT: Councillor K Flunder (Chair) 

Councillors J Aberley, R Alcock, C J S Atkins, G Bentley, G Bond, 
M Bowen, C Brady, B Cawley, S Coleman, J Davies, M A Deaville, 
B Emery, E Fallows, M Gledhill, T Hall, A Hart, N Hawkins, G Heath, 
I Herdman, T Holmes, K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, A Hulme, 
K J Jackson, B Johnson, J T Jones, L A Malyon, L Page, I Plant, 
H Plimley, J Porter, D Price, S E Ralphs MBE, T Riley, P Roberts, 
P Routledge, J Salt, S Scalise, H Sheldon MBE, L Swindlehurst, 
P Taylor, E Wain, R Ward, I Whitehouse, P Wilkinson, 
M Worthington and N Yates.

APOLOGIES: Councillors P Elkin, I Lawson, L D Lea, K Martin, T McNicol, 
J Redfern, D Shaw and P Wood

5 FORMER COUNCILLOR ARTHUR FORRESTER

The Council observed a minute’s silence in memory of former Councillor and Deputy 
Council Leader Arthur Forrester who sadly passed away on 25 August 2020.

6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:

The following declarations were made:-

Agenda Item Members Declaring 
Interest Nature of Interest

Cllr I. Herdman

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest – beneficial interest 
in land – site within Blythe 
Bridge and Forsbrook.  

5. Update on the Local 
Plan examination and
consideration of options 
for Biddulph

Cllr A. Hart

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest – beneficial interest 
in land – sites within 
Biddulph. 

Any matters arising 
relating to grants.

Cllrs K. Flunder and H. 
Sheldon

Other Interest – recipient of 
small business grant

Page 17

Agenda Item 2.2



Council Assembly - 9 September 2020

7 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE PROVIDED TO 
THE CHAIRMAN).

Dispensation – Councillor Peter Elkin

RESOLVED:

That in accordance with Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972, Councillor 
Elkin be granted a dispensation from attending meetings of the Council and its 
constituent bodies due to his illness until the next meeting of the Council when the 
situation would be reviewed.

Chairman’s Announcement

The Chairman of the Council announced that he would use some of his charitable 
monies raised to increase the Councillor Initiative Fund by £120.00 per member.  
Councillors Bowen, Cawley, Gledhill and Plimley would also receive a further £50.00 
in recognition of their assistance in organising charitable events.

8 TO SUSPEND COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES OF DEBATE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
RULES 30.3 AND 26 OF THE COUNCIL MEETING PROCEDURE RULES.

RESOLVED:

That in accordance with Rules 30.3 and 26 of the Council Meeting Procedure Rules, 
rules of debate be suspended to facilitate informal debate.

9 ADOPTION OF THE STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS LOCAL PLAN

(Having declared interests Councillors Hart, Herdman and Johnson withdrew from 
the meeting at this point)

The report informed the Council of the Final Report of the Inspector regarding the 
Examination of the Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan.  It recommended the 
adoption of the Local Plan incorporating the Inspector’s recommended main 
modifications and the Council’s additional modifications and to delegate approval to 
the Executive Director (Place) for the preparation of the Policies Map and any further 
additional modifications to the Local Plan that relate to factual updates, grammatical 
and formatting corrections.

Councillors considered the report in detail and expressed their thanks to officers and 
residents for their contributions to the development of the Local Plan.  Members 
underlined the importance of future considerations with regards to design quality and 
infrastructure development.

Members voted as follows:

Those voting FOR:

Councillors Aberley, Atkins, Bentley, Bond, Bowen, Brady, Cawley, Coleman, 
Davies, Deaville, Emery, Fallows, Flunder, Gledhill, Hall, Hawkins, Heath, Holmes, 
Hoptroff, Hughes, Hulme, Jackson, Jones, Malyon, Page, Plant, Plimley, Porter, 
Price, Ralphs, Riley, Roberts, Routledge, Salt, Scalise, Swindlehurst, Taylor, Wain, 
Ward, Whitehouse, Wilkinson, Worthington and Yates (43)Page 18



Council Assembly - 9 September 2020

Those voting AGAINST:

Councillor Alcock.

ABSTENTIONS:

There were no abstentions.

It was therefore RESOLVED:

1. That the Inspector’s report on the examination of the Local Plan and his 
recommended main modifications (Appendix 2, 3, 4, 5) be noted.

2. That the consultation feedback regarding the additional modifications be noted 
(Appendix 6) and the suggested Council responses (Appendix 7) be supported.

3. That the Sustainability Appraisal of the main modifications (Appendix 10) and the 
Equalities Impact Assessment of the Local Plan (Appendix 11) be noted.

4. That the Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan (Appendix 1) with the main 
modifications recommended by the Inspector (Appendix 3, 4 & 5) and the revised 
additional modifications proposed by the Council (Appendix 8) to be incorporated 
be adopted.

5. That the proposed changes to the Policies Map in light of the main and additional 
modifications be noted. 

6. That authority be delegated to the Executive Director (Place) to prepare the 
Policies Map to illustrate geographically the application of the policies in the 
adopted Local Plan.

7. That authority be delegated to the Executive Director (Place) to make further 
additional modifications to the Local Plan that relate to factual updates, 
grammatical and formatting corrections as required.

10 APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

(Councillors Hart and Herdman re-joined the meeting)

Members considered a report that confirmed the recommendation from the Joint 
Appointments Panel to appoint a new Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service and 
also  confirmed the appointment of a Returning Officer and Electoral Registration 
Officer.  It was confirmed that a similar recommendation would be made to High 
Peak Borough Council.

Members voted as follows:

Page 19



Council Assembly - 9 September 2020

Those voting FOR:

Councillors Aberley, Atkins, Bentley, Bond, Bowen, Brady, Cawley, Davies, Deaville, 
Emery, Fallows, Flunder, Gledhill, Hall, Hart, Hawkins, Heath, Herdman, Holmes, 
Hoptroff, Hughes, Hulme, Jackson, Jones, Malyon, Page, Plant, Plimley, Porter, 
Price, Ralphs, Riley, Roberts, Routledge, Salt, Scalise, Swindlehurst, Taylor, Wain, 
Ward, Whitehouse, Wilkinson, Worthington and Yates (44)

ABSTENTIONS:

No councillors voted against or abstained.

It was therefore RESOLVED:

1. That the recommendation of the Joint Appointments Panel that Andrew Stokes 
be appointed as Joint Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service be approved.

2. That the appointment of Andrew Stokes as Returning Officer and Electoral 
Registration Officer for Staffordshire Moorlands District Council be confirmed.

The meeting closed at 8.23 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________DatePage 20



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel

23 September 2020

TITLE: Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019-
2020

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Sally Hampton - Member and Community 
Services Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Non Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A -Terms of Reference and Membership of Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To provide Councillors with a summary of the work undertaken by the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels during 2019 – 2020.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 During 2019/20, the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels continued to 
scrutinise performance internally/externally, hold the Cabinet to account and 
contribute to policy development.  The range of work and issues considered by 
each Panel during 2019/20 are summarised in sections 6 - 9 of the report.  
Appendix A of the report contains the terms of reference of each Panel and its 
membership.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective scrutiny and development of Council policies and services.

Page 21

Agenda Item 8.1



Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Overview & Scrutiny Panel agendas and reports Sally Hampton
Member and Community Services Officer
sally.hampton@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

5. Detail

5.1 The Cabinet is responsible for making the day-to-day decisions concerning the 
implementation of policies of the Council.  Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
ensure that the Cabinet is publicly held to account for their actions and seeks 
to promote open and transparent decision- making and democratic 
accountability.  They also have a role in researching, scrutinising other bodies 
and ensuring that the Council’s policy and budget framework is respected and 
realising the key aims of the Council’s Corporate Plan.  Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels may appoint Task and Finish Working Groups/Sub-Committees to 
examine any issue in more depth.  

5.2 Effective participation has taken place with the involvement of partners, 
outside organisations and individuals at Panel and Working Group meetings.  
Cabinet Portfolio Holders also attend such meetings to provide updates or 
answer questions. 

5.3 Each Overview and Scrutiny Panel is responsible for setting its own Work 
Programme.  These are informed by the Council’s Forward Plan containing 
Key Decisions to be made by the Council’s Cabinet. The Work Programme is 
listed as a standing item for review and approval at each Panel meeting.  
Executive Directors work closely with the Chairs of each Panel to assist in the 
planning of agendas, provide briefings and ensure the Panel meets its 
objectives.  Support is also provided by the Democratic and Community 
Services Team together with Officers from the Council’s various service areas. 
Following the local election in May 2019, at the first meeting of each of the 
scrutiny Panels, the responsible Executive Director gave a briefing to out line 
the above to members.

6. Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel

6.1 To ensure that financial management is sound thorough consideration was 
given to regular financial, procurement and performance reports, which 
included performance against the budget and a review of fees and charges. 
Members were kept up to date with progress with regard to the Council’s 
Efficiency Programme, revenue collection, treasury management, Capital 
Programme and customer feedback.

Page 22

https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?CT=13106,13236


6.2 The findings from the Annual Report, the Draft Performance Framework and 
suggested approach and timescale for the development of the new 4-year 
Corporate Plan were presented to members and recommended for approval 
by Cabinet.

6.3 At a subsequent meeting, the new Corporate Plan 2019-2023 was considered 
by the Panel and members commented on the summary of the plan. It was 
essential for the Council to develop and agree a Corporate Plan. The plan 
would provide clear direction for the delivery of services to achieve the 
Council’s vision, aims and objectives to deliver positive outcomes for citizens. 
To conclude, the Panel agreed with the recommendations and requested that 
Council approved the Council’s vision, aims, objectives, influencing objectives 
and priorities. On 16th October 2019 the Corporate Plan was adopted by Full 
Council and in November 2019, the Panel was updated on the Communication 
and Engagement Plan.

6.4 Members were presented with the updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 
2020/21 – 2023/24. The report set out the context for the preparation of the 
2020/21 budget which was presented for approval by the Council in February 
2020.

6.5 Andrew Stokes – Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer – presented the 
proposed Budget for 2020/21, the updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 
2020/21 – 2023/24, the Capital Strategy 2020/21, the proposed Fees and 
Charges for 2020/21 and the Procurement Forward Plan 2020/21. Members 
had the opportunity to scrutinise the details for each item contained within the 
appendices to the main report.

6.6 Claire Hazeldene - Deputy Director, Finance, Income and Procurement 
attended various meetings of the Panel to introduce various reports such as:-

 Business Rate Reliefs granted by the Council in advance of a review of 
the policy later that year;

 A schedule of applications for write-off of Council Tax, Business Rates 
and Sundry Debts;

 The latest position on the AES phase 3 financial arrangements, and 
commissioning structure.

 The review of the Business Rate Reliefs policy and the Council Tax 
Reductions and Levies Policy.

6.7 For the first time, the Health and Safety Annual Report was presented to the 
Panel as it had previously been presented to the Joint Consultative 
Committee.

6.8 Members had the opportunity to scrutinise the draft Performance Framework 
and associated targets for 2020/23 and the findings from the recent online 
consultation, which sought feedback from a range of stakeholders on the 
council’s new corporate plan priorities for 2019/23 were shared.

6.9 From March 2020, due to the Covid-19 Pandemic, face to face meetings of the 
Panel were unable to take place. To ensure the business of the Council 
continued and for members to have the opportunity to comment on reports 

Page 23



outside of formal committee meetings, information digests were distributed to all 
councillors. The Resources Panel received an information digest on the 
progress of the Council’s Empty Property Strategy.

7. Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel

7.1 The Panel scrutinised a range of subjects over the year focused on services 
provided by the authority.  This included the annual report on the performance 
of Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) and a presentation was 
delivered by Kevin Melling and Jane Thomason from AES. At the request of 
the Panel, a report on recycling and reuse services was provided and a visit to 
the Materials Recycling Facility at Shotton in Deeside took place on 30th 
October 2019.

7.2 Consideration was given to a variety of regeneration items such as the Growth 
Strategy, Investment and Acquisition Strategy and Wharf Road and Tunstall 
Road masterplans which had been prepared to assist with the delivery of the 
emerging Local Plan. Members commented and gave feedback to the Head of 
Regeneration and Executive Director (Place). 

7.3 The Executive Director (Place), also updated members on the progress of the 
Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme  which was a package of measures 
to tackle the low level of development activity in the district.

7.4 The Panel scrutinised the annual performance update from Parkwood Leisure 
which was provided by the Regional Director - Alex Godfrey and was informed 
of the development work to help establish clear plans for future investment  and 
management options for leisure centres, in line with the Physical Activity and 
Sport Strategy and ambitions for a reduced service subsidy.

7.5 Members received a report which provided an update following the first year of 
the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, with information relating to 
implementation and homelessness applications made during 2018/19.

7.6 The Leader of the Council attended a meeting of the Panel at which the future 
of Leek Trestle Market was discussed. Members were also kept informed of 
the changes to Leek Market’s rules and regulations to improve the efficiency 
and cost-effectiveness of the market operation. 

7.7 Finally, at the request of a Panel member , David Smith – Principal Officer, 
Communities and Partnerships, outlined the publicity and communication 
carried out by the Council in relation to dog fouling.

8. Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel

8.1 Members received annual updates from Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek Citizens 
Advice Bureaux and scrutinised the annual operational policing report 
provided by Chief Inspector Mark Thorley and his colleague Sergeant Rob 

Page 24



Peacock. The Panel asked for statistics on the number of convictions to be 
included in the next annual update.

8.2 The Panel debated the withdrawal of free TV licences for over 75 year olds. 
Members were concerned that for some pensioners this could lead to issues 
around social isolation and a letter was sent to the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer, with a copy of the letter sent to the BBC raising these concerns. 

8.3 Members considered a briefing paper introduced by Sharon Wheeler – 
Property Manager, which provided a performance and development update on 
Your Housing Group business areas identified in the legacy agreement. The 
Panel would normally receive 6 monthly update twice a year, but due to Covid-
19, the update scheduled to take place on 23rd March 2020 was postponed. 
However, prior to this meeting, all Panel members were offered one to one 
appointments with the Property Manager to raise any specific concerns.

8.4 The outcome of an assessment of the air quality in Leek and Cellarhead had 
concluded that it was necessary to declare two Air Quality Management 
Areas, encompassing the roads and properties within these areas. Daniel 
McCrory – Senior Officer, Pollution Control, introduced a report which kept the 
Panel informed on this matter. Following the meeting, members liaised directly 
with the officer in regards to specific requests for the installation of monitoring 
equipment in other areas.  

8.5 Further to children’s meals being debated at Full Council in October 2019, 
Councillor Ralphs attended a meeting of the Panel to inform members of the 
work she had undertaken on this important issue. Members had the 
opportunity to give feedback and make suggestions to the Leader.  

8.6 In response to members concerns in relation to flyposting and banners seen in 
the area, Ben Haywood, Head of Development Services and David Smith, 
Principal Officer Communities and Partnerships, provided a presentation on 
the consent, control and enforcement of advertisements. It was agreed that 
the Enforcement Team would take a look at the advertisement banners and ‘A’ 
boards in Leek and Werrington and for the flyposting policy to be reviewed.

8.7 The Panel gave its consideration to a report which detailed proposed changes 
to the Dog Fouling Order, which was due to cease to have effect on 20th October 
2020. The Panel was in agreement with the recommendations but suggested to 
Cabinet that it did not allow the (Dogs on a Lead Order and Dog Exclusion Order) to 
expire.

8.8 Mark Forrester – Head of Democratic and Community Services, attended a 
meeting to keep members informed of the use of the Councillors’ Community 
Initiative Fund (CCIF) in 2018/19.

8.9 The minutes of the last Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel and reports 
from the Chairman were issued with each agenda to ensure the Panel is kept 
informed of the work undertaken by the Panel at the County Council.

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Page 25



9.1 The Panel scrutinised a range of subjects over the year, focused on items 
relating to the health service at the request of the Panel via the Work 
Programme. Members received updates from each of the representatives 
below and had the opportunity to ask questions:-

 Jackie Owen - Healthwatch Staffordshire Manager and Maggie 
Matthews - Chair of Healthwatch Advisory Board, provided an annual 
update and an overview of the work carried out by the organisation.

 David Pearson - Vice Chair of the Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership gave a presentation to  
explain Together We’re Better Health and Care.

 Joanne Robinson - Senior Commissioning Manager, SCC and Suzanne 
Rhodes - Community Engagement Programme Manager, advised the 
Panel of the services provided by Everyone Health.

 Neil Carr - Chief Executive, Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust and Tracey Bullock – Chief Executive, Royal Stoke University 
Hospital, provided annual updates for their organisations.

9.2 On two occasions special meetings of the Panel took place. The first was to 
introduce the proposal for a Single Strategic Commissioning Organisation 
which was set out in the form of a presentation from Dr Alison Bradley and 
Anna Collins - Associate Director of Communication and Engagement. 
Subsequently, a formal response was sent to the CCG on behalf of the Panel.  
The second special meeting was arranged at the request of the Panel due to 
the Annual NHS England Assessment of the North Staffordshire and Stoke-
on-Trent Commissioning Group. The Accountable Officer – Marcus Warnes 
attended the meeting and explained the reasons for the assessment to be 
graded as inadequate and the actions which were in place. In relation to the 
same matter, a letter was also sent to Secretary of State for Health and Social 
Care to urge the department to place the CGG into special measures.

9.3 A member of the Panel provided feedback on the pilot scheme to move diabetic 
eye screening into dedicated NHS provision rather than patient’s own opticians. 
The aim was to increase attendance and provide staff specifically trained in 
diabetic eye care. The aim of the project was to achieve over 80% access to 
eye clinics within the 6-month trial and as the trial was approaching completion, 
data showed that this had been achieved. 

9.4 A representative from the West Midlands Ambulance Service (WMAS) 
attended a meeting, to outline the decision to remove the Rapid Response 
Vehicles from the fleet. The WMAS officer recognised the concerns of the rural 
community and gave assurance that this model provided a robust response to 
patients and clinical outcomes were continually measured and monitored. 
Despite many concerns from members, the decision had been made and 
would not be reviewed.

9.5 The Dementia Care Working Group has continued to meet and has met with 
staff from two local GP surgeries and the Lead Advisor from the Dementia 
Connect Service. 

Page 26



Gwyneth Mangono from the Midlands Partnership NHS Trust (MPFT), has 
attended a meeting to advise members of the role of the Trust in relation to 
dementia, along with Kat Horner - Dementia Friendly Communities Officer, 
who explained the process involved to create a Dementia Friendly Community. 
The Group will report back its findings and final recommendations to the Panel 
in the near future.

9.6 The minutes of the last Staffordshire County Council Healthy Staffordshire 
Committee were issued with each agenda for the Panel to be kept informed of 
the work undertaken by the Committee.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

         Terms of Reference and Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Panels

Overview & Scrutiny Panel Scope

Resources
Membership: Cllrs; Atkins, 

Davies, Fallows, Gledhill, Hart, 
Hawkins, Holmes, Hughes, 

Hulme, Jackson, Jones, Lea, 
Malyon, Plant, Riley, Routledge, 

Shaw, Wilkinson and Yates.

Budget and policy framework, service 
improvement and performance monitoring; 

resource allocation; accessibility of 
services; co-ordination of scrutiny work 

programme; Strategic Alliance and 
efficiencies; overview and scrutiny of all 

functional responsibilities of the portfolios 
covering finance and resources, customer 
services and performance management.

Service Delivery
Membership: Cllrs; Aberley, 

Bentley, Brady, Davies, Emery, 
Flunder, Hart, Hawkins, 

Herdman, Hoptroff, Page, 
Plimley, Price, Redfern, Roberts, 

Salt, Sheldon, Ward and 
Whitehouse.

The delivery of council services including 
environment, planning (including 

development and property); housing and 
regeneration; culture (arts, leisure, sport, 

parks, countryside, tourism); overview and 
scrutiny of the portfolio(s) covering 

regeneration, environment, culture, leisure 
and planning, development and property.

Health
Membership: Cllrs; Alcock, 

Atkins, Cawley, Fallows, Flunder,  
Herdman, Holmes, Hughes, 

Hulme, Jones, Lawson,  Malyon, 
McNicol, Price, Redfern, Riley, 
Salt, Swindlehurst, Ward and 

Wood.

Scrutiny of health service provision in the 
Staffordshire Moorlands (as defined in the 
Code of Joint Working with Staffordshire 

County Council) contributing to the work of 
the Healthy Staffordshire Select 

Committee, which has overall responsibility 
for health scrutiny.

Community
Aberley, Bentley, Heath, 

Herdman, Hoptroff, Hughes, 
Johnson, Jones, Martin, Mcnicol,   

Riley, Roberts, Shaw, 
Swindlehurst, Taylor, Ward, 

Wood and Yates.

Democratic and community engagement, 
equalities and diversity, sustainability & 
climate change, community safety, the 

Council’s Community Leadership Scheme, 
locality working, the councillor call for 
action, the Local Strategic Partnership 

(LSP) and other partnerships.  The 
commissioning/delivery of services by 

Staffordshire County Council, parish/town 
councils and the voluntary/third sector.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Standards Committee

19 November 2020

TITLE: Standards Committee Annual Report

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs MBE- Council Leader 

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon - Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendix A – Role of the Committee

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To review the work of the Standards Committee during 2019/2020.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report provides an overview of the issues considered by the Standards 
Committee during 2019/20.  This included the following matters:

 Bitesize Briefing
 Code of Conduct - Dispensations
 Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review
 Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 

Conduct
 The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 High standards of conduct are integral to the Council achieving its corporate 
priorities.

Page 31

Agenda Item 8.2



5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Standards Committee Reports Linden Vernon
Senior Officer (Governance and Member 
Support)
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 Article 9 of the Council’s Constitution defines the role of the Standards 
Committee and is shown in full in Appendix A to this report.  In summary this 
includes:

 To promote high standards of conduct by elected and co-opted members 
and staff

 To advise the Council, monitor the operation and provide training/notes on 
local codes of conduct, protocols or other ethical guidance for Members and 
staff 

 Granting dispensations to District Councillors
 To consider and where necessary take action regarding complaints for 

breaches of the Code of Conduct
 To promote Member development and training on ethics and standards 

generally within the District Council
 To monitor the Council's corporate complaints procedure including any 

references to the Local Government or Housing Ombudsman and to 
consider any implications for the Council’s codes, protocols or ethical 
guidance

 To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Constitution

6.2 The current membership of the committee is provided below. The Council’s 
Independent Persons continue to be invited to attend and participate at 
Committee meetings.  

Standards Committee Composition
District Councillors  Councillor Geoff Bond (Chair) 

 Councillor Ben Emery (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillor James Aberley   
 Councillor Ian Herdman   
 Councillor Kevin J Jackson   
 Councillor Brian Johnson   
 Councillor Kate Martin   
 Councillor Phil Taylor   
 Councillor Peter Wilkinson  

Page 32

https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=191


Standards Committee Composition
Town/Parish representatives 
(non-voting)

Cllr David Fowler
Cllr Barbara Hughes

Independent Persons Mr Harry Mawdsley
Mr Philip Brough (substitute)

Bite Size Briefing

6.3 Following the local elections held in May 2019 councillors received a 
presentation on the role of the Committee.  This included an overview of the 
Council’s decision making process and its Ethical Framework.  The 
presentation also included a summary of the Council’s obligations to comply 
with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 with regards to standards.  
These included:

 The duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct
 The adoption of a Code of Conduct
 Having arrangements in place to deal with standards complaints
 The need to declare and record Pecuniary and ‘Other’ Interests

Code of Conduct - Dispensations

6.4 Section 33 of the Localism Act made provision for the circumstances where 
dispensations may be granted.  The power to grant dispensations has been 
delegated by Council to the Standards Committee, in consultation with the 
Independent Person.  Previously, under the old Code of Conduct, general 
exemptions were provided to all councillors with regard to prejudicial interests 
in any business of the authority where that business related to certain 
functions of the authority.

6.5 The arrangements introduced by the Localism Act 2011 did not reproduce 
these exemptions and as a result councillors could effectively breach the Code 
of Conduct should they take part in a meeting where any of these matters 
were being discussed and they have a disclosable pecuniary interest in the 
matter.  

6.6 That Committee granted general dispensations to all councillors for a period of 
four years in respect of:

 An allowance, payment or indemnity given to members.
 Any ceremonial honour given to members.
 Setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 

1992 as amended from time to time or any superseding legislation.
 Housing, where the councillor is a tenant of the authority or occupies a 

property of the authority provided that those functions do not relate 
particularly to the councillor’s tenancy, occupancy or lease.

 Setting the local council tax support scheme 
 Setting a local scheme for the payment of business rates

Page 33



Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review

6.7 The report informed Members about the best practice recommendations made 
by the Committee on Standards in Public Life after their recent review into 
ethical standards in local government. 

6.8 The recommendations were subsequently adopted into the Council’s local 
ethical framework.  These included making revisions to the Code of Conduct 
(prohibitions on bullying and harassment, requiring councillors to comply with 
any formal standards investigation and prohibiting trivial or malicious 
allegations by councillors) and the adoption of initial assessment criteria for 
use under the Council’s Arrangements for dealing with Standards Complaints 
under the Localism Act 2011.

Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 
Conduct

6.9 The Committee continued to receive regular complaint monitoring reports 
regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct.  These reports updated 
members on the number and nature of complaints dealt with by the Monitoring 
Officer and explained:

 If these related to district or town/parish councillors
 If any further action should be taken
 If further investigations were considered to be appropriate

6.10 This information is then used to identify trends and consider themes for which 
training seminars may be planned.  The table below summarises the 
complaints received for the previous years and compares these with the 
Authority’s Strategic Alliance partner, High Peak Borough Council (HPBC).

No. of ComplaintsYear
Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
Parish Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
District Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

Total

High 
Peak

Parish 
Cllr

High 
Peak

Borough 
Cllr

High 
Peak
Total

2013/14 3 1 4 10 1 11
2014/15 5 1 6 2 1 3
2015/16 3 12 15 4 0 4
2016/17 9 16 25 4 2 6
2017/18 5 8 13 1 3 4
2018/19 2 9 11 2 1 3
2019/20 6 26 32 19 1 20

The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman 

6.11 The Annual Letter of the Local Government Ombudsman was considered by 
the Committee at its meeting in November 2019.  The table below provides a 
summary of the number of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman set 

Page 34



against the total number of complaints received by the Authority.  For 
comparison purposes figures for previous years are also provided together 
with details for HPBC.

No. of Ombudsman Complaints
SMDC HPBC

Year

No. of  
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of  
Complaints

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

2012/13 14 439 10 404
2013/14 12 280 20* 372
2014/15 10 284 12 413
2015/16 13 258 11 368
2016/17 10 245 8* 448
2017/18 12 193 15 308
2018/19 6 119 7 223

* This includes one complaint from the Housing Ombudsman Service.  

6.12 The relatively small number of complaints that reach the Ombudsman 
compared to the total number of complaints received by the Authority 
illustrates the strength of the Council in ensuring complaints are dealt with 
promptly and appropriately.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Article 9 - The Standards Committee

9.1 Standards Committee
The Council has established a Standards Committee.  

9.2 Composition

(a) Membership.   The Standards Committee will comprise:

 nine elected members of the Council, appointed proportionally;

 up to two Town or Parish Council members may be co-opted on to the 
Committee as non-voting members.

(b) Independent Person.  The Council’s Independent Person and their substitutes 
will be invited to attend and participate at committee meetings but will not be 
entitled to vote at meetings.

9.3 Role and Function

The Standards Committee will have the following roles and functions:

(a) To promote high standards of conduct by elected and co-opted members and 
staff of Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 

(b) To advise the District Council on the adoption or revision of local codes of 
conduct, protocols or other ethical guidance for Members and staff. 

(c) To monitor the operation of the Council's codes of conduct, protocols or other 
ethical guidance. 

(d) To provide briefings, training or advisory notes to elected and co-opted 
Members and staff relating to the Council's codes of conduct, protocols or other 
ethical guidance. 

(e) Where appropriate, granting dispensations to District Councillors from 
requirements relating to interests set out in the Members Code of Conduct. 

(f) To consider and where necessary take action regarding complaints for 
breaches of the Code of Conduct by the District Council’s members and have 
arrangements in place to deal with complaints for Parish and Town Councils.

(g) To promote Member development and training on ethics and standards 
generally within the District Council. 

(h) To monitor the Council's corporate complaints procedure including any 
references to the Local Government or Housing Ombudsman and to consider 
any implications for the Council’s codes, protocols or ethical guidance. 

(i) To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Constitution in 
accordance with Article 14. 

Page 37



9.4 Delegated Powers
The Standards Committee has full delegated power to act within its defined role and 
function. 

Page 38



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Audit & Accounts Committee

3rd July 2020

Appendix A (attached) - Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20

1. Reason for the Report

1.1. The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management performance in 2019/20 in compliance with the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and generally accepted good practice.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 is recommended to 
Council for approval.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government 
Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury management 
activities for 2019/20.

3.2. The Annual Treasury Management Report for 2019/20 considers the following 
areas:
 The Treasury Management Strategy adopted in 2019/20 and the economic 

environment during the year;
 The current treasury position, highlighting the Council’s borrowing and lending 

position at the year end;
 The Council’s capital expenditure, overall borrowing need and borrowing 

outturn during 2019/20;
 Performance measurements, which look at the return achieved during the year 

by the Council on its overall investments;

TITLE:   Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICER: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance
Emily Bennetts –   Finance Business Partner

WARDS: Non-Specific

Page 39

Agenda Item 8.3



 The Council’s investment portfolio, which sets out for Members how and where 
the Council has invested its money during the year;

 The interest yield for 2019/20; and
 Compliance with Prudential Indicators, showing the outturn against those 

Indicators formally adopted in the 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement.

3.3. The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer confirms that borrowing was only 
undertaken for a capital purpose and the statutory borrowing limit (the authorised 
limit) was not breached.

3.4. The main headlines include: 

 Capital expenditure in 2019/20 totalled £2.7million. Capital expenditure was 
funded in a large part via capital grants and reserves, the remainder has 
created a borrowing requirement of £645,000.

 Total external debt at 31st March 2020 amounted to £10million, which all relates 
to loans from other Local Authorities. There was an underspend of £91,000 
against borrowing costs as the budget included an expectation that borrowing 
would be required to fund general fund capital activities and the Ascent Loan 
balance would be fully funded through external borrowing. Instead the new 
general fund borrowing requirement of £645,000 along with £4million of the 
Ascent Loan balance is funded through internal borrowing.

 The average daily investment during 2019/20 was £8.9million invested with a 
total of 6 institutions, yielding £90,950 in investment income. There was a 
shortfall against the investment income budget of £26,630 owing to the 
continuing and increased internal borrowing and the low interest rate 
environment.

 The average return achieved by the Council on its investment portfolio for the 
year was 0.75% which compares favourably to short-term industry 
benchmarks.

 £592,996 interest income was earned from the debenture and loan balances 
held with Ascent.  The debenture interest was on target against the budget. 
There was a small surplus of £8,730 against the loan budget as the rate on the 
day of the refinanced tranches was slightly higher than estimated at budget 
setting.

 
 Year-end investments totalled £28.7million (including £19million held with 

Ascent), all internally managed by the Council’s Treasury Management Team. 

 The outturn against treasury and prudential indicators as set within the 
Treasury Strategy 2019/20 is shown in Annex B.

Page 40



4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s main 
priorities.

5. Options

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council for 2019/20. As such it is a statement of fact and there are no 
options to consider.

6. Implications

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None

6.2. Workforce

None

6.3. Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and 
Equality Policies.

6.4. Financial Considerations

Included throughout the report

6.5. Legal

None

6.6. Sustainability

None

6.7. Internal and External Consultation

None

6.8. Risk Assessment

There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury 
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or deposits. 
For this reason, the Council engages the services of external Treasury 
Management advisors, Link Asset Services (‘Link’).

Page 41



Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s 
formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That Strategy includes a 
number of risk management features such as the overriding priority that security 
of deposit takes precedence over return on investment.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contacts

‘Treasury Management – 
Governance and Scrutiny 
Arrangements’  
Audit & Accounts Committee Sept 09

‘Treasury Management Strategy 
2019/20’
Audit & Accounts Committee Feb 19

Finance and Procurement, 
Moorlands House, Leek

Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186

Page 42



APPENDIX A

Annual Treasury Management 
Report

2019/20

June 2020

Page 43



1 Introduction and Background

1.1 The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury management activities 
and the outturn against prudential and treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report 
meets the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and 
the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential 
Code). 

1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and 
scrutiny of Treasury Management policy and activities. This report provides details 
of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the 
Council’s policies previously approved by Members.  

1.3 This report covers:
 Strategy for 2019/20
 Economy in 2019/20 
 The Council’s treasury position as at 31st March 2020
 Capital expenditure and the overall borrowing need
 Borrowing outturn 
 Investment performance 
 Investment portfolio & yield
 Compliance with prudential & treasury indicators

2 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy & Economic Conditions

2.1 The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 
2019/20 was based on the assumption of a Brexit deal being agreed between 
Parliament and the EU in the first quarter of 2019 and included a rise in the Bank of 
England base rate from 0.75% to 1.00% in quarter 1 and a further increase to 1.25% 
in quarter 4. None of these rises took place; the base rate remained at 0.75% for 
the majority of the year, then decreased to 0.25% on 11th March 2020 and again to 
0.10% on 19th March in response to the Covid-19 crisis.

2.2 The hold on base rate at 0.75% meant that investment opportunities and yields were 
not as high as anticipated. The reduction in base rate in March will be felt in further 
reduced investment yields in 2020/21.

2.3 In October 2019 the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) increased its borrowing 
interest rates by 1% without warning. However, this actually brought the borrowing 
rates closer to what had been anticipated in the strategy. It also meant the the Local 
Authority lending market became more competitive again and offers were available 
for longer periods, up to 2 or 3 years, whereas they terms on offer had  reduced  
closer to a year in recent times.

2.4 A consultation on PWLB borrowing was announced in March which may result in 
changes to borrowing rates for certain types of projects including discounts on 
borrowing for social housing infrastructure and restrictions around commercial 
acitivites. The outcome of the consultation is anticipated around September 2020.

Page 44



3 The Current Treasury Position

3.1 The Council’s debt and investment position at the beginning and the end of the 
2019/20 financial year was as follows:

2018/19 2019/20
31st March 

2019 Principal
Rate / 
Return

31st March 
2020 Principal

Rate / 
Return

Total Debt:
External Borrowing, 
fixed rate

£11,000,000 1.49% £10,000,000 1.57%

Investments
  In-House £7,611,662 0.72%* £9,729,806 0.69%*
  Debenture – Ascent LLP £5,000,000 2.00% £5,000,000 2.00%
  Loan Facility – Ascent LLP £14,000,000 3.14% £14,000,000 3.52%
Total Investments £26,611,662 2.23% £26,611,662 2.30%
*Average investment interest rate in March

4 The Council’s Capital Expenditure & Borrowing Requirement 2019/20

4.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities 
may either be financed:
 through the application of capital or revenue resources (including capital 

receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant 
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or

 by borrowing, where there is insufficient internal resource or where a decision 
is taken to finance expenditure externally.

4.2 Capital expenditure constitutes one of the required prudential indicators. The table 
below shows actual capital expenditure for 2019/20 and how this was financed:

4.3 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR).  It represents the 2019/20 unfinanced capital 
expenditure and prior years’ unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been 
paid for.

4.4 As the table above shows 2019/20 capital expenditure was funded in large part by 
capital grants and reserves, the remainder has created a borrowing requirement of 
£644,722.

2019/20 Outturn
Total General Fund Capital Expenditure £2,699,787
Resourced by:
   Capital reserve funding £1,384,389
   Capital grants & contributions £670,676
Unfinanced capital expenditure 
(Underlying Need to Borrow) £644,722

Page 45



4.5 The Treasury Management team plans the Council’s cash position to ensure 
sufficient cash is available to meet capital plans and cash flow requirements. This 
may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Public Works 
Loan Board or the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within the 
Council.

4.6 The Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise indefinitely. 
Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged to 
revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an annual 
revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) to reduce the CFR.  
This is effectively a repayment of the cumulative borrowing need.  

4.7 The Council’s 2019/20 MRP Policy was approved as part of the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement 2019/20 in February 2019.

4.8 MRP is applied to unfinanced general fund capital expenditure. However, as the 
initial term of the loan to Ascent is for a short-term period of 5 years, at which point 
the loaned funds are repayable in full, there is no MRP requirement for borrowing 
undertaken in respect of the Ascent loan.  

4.9 The Council’s overall CFR is shown below:
2019/20 Projected 

Outturn (£)
Opening balance (1st April 2019) 16,229,729
Plus 2019/20 borrowing requirement 644,722
Less MRP (46,380)
Closing balance (31st March 2020) 16,828,071

4.10 Borrowing activity is constrained by Prudential Indicators for borrowing and the CFR, 
and by the Authorised Limit.  In order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent 
over the medium term, external borrowing must only be for a capital purpose – 
essentially this means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue 
expenditure.  External borrowing should not therefore, except in the short-term, 
exceed the CFR for 2019/20 (plus expected changes to the CFR over 2020/21 and 
2021/22).  This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of 
its immediate capital needs. 

4.11 The table below highlights the Council’s borrowing position against the CFR:
31 March 2020 

Projected
(£)

31 March 2021 
Forecast

(£)

31 March 2022 
Forecast 

(£)
Borrowing position 10,000,000 16,249,240 18,146,350
Capital Financing Requirement 16,828,071 21,018,036 22,588,856
Over / (under) borrowed (6,828,071) (4,768,796) (4,442,506)

4.12 The CFR as at the end of 2019/20 relates to the borrowing undertaken to fund the 
Ascent loan and general fund borrowing requirements in 2014/15, and 2017/18 to 
2019/20 (for other capital schemes). As at 31st March 2020, the Authority was in an 
under-borrowed position of £6,828,071 therefore has complied with the prudential 
indicator.

Page 46



5 Borrowing Outturn

5.1 There was no ‘new’ borrowing undertaken during 2019/20. Maturity and refinancing 
activity is summarised in the table below:

Amount Lender Interest 
Rate Term Month

Maturing Loans
£1,000,000 Vale of Glamorgan Council 0.95% 6 months August
£1,000,000 Western Isles Council 1.00% 9 months October
£1,500,000 Milton Keynes Council 2.00% 5 years November
£1,000,000 Gloucestershire City Council 1.95% 4.9 years December
£2,000,000 Lincolnshire County Council 1.10% 1 year January
£1,000,000 Milton Keynes Council 1.75% 5 years February
£1,000,000 Milton Keynes Council 1.75% 5 years March
£8,500,000 Total maturities

Refinancing
£1,500,000 Brighton & Hove City Council 0.99% 1 year November
£2,000,000 Gloucestershire City Council 0.95% 1 year December
£2,000,000 Hyndburn Borough Council 0.92% 1 year January
£2,000,000 Broxbourne Borough Council 0.88% 6 months January
£7,500,000 Total refinancing

5.2 The borrowing costs outturn was £91,000 underspent against the 2019/20 budget 
of £294,390.  The budget had originally anticipated £2.8million of new loans to be 
taken mid-year to support a general fund borrowing requirement and the full Ascent 
Loan balance of £14million. The outturn of the general fund borrowing requirement 
was lower at £644,722 and between £3million and £4million of Ascent Loan was 
funded through internal borrowing, using reserves. This is a net advantage to the 
Council as the savings on the cost of borrowing outweigh the income foregone 
through reduced investment balances.

5.3 The practice of avoiding new borrowing by utilising spare cash balances has served 
well over recent years in terms of making net savings on financing costs. However, 
this is kept under constant review, especially with an expectation of rate rises, to 
avoid higher borrowing costs in the future.

6 Investment Performance  

6.1 The economic backdrop for the year underpins how the Council has performed with 
regard to maximising its investment return. Uncertainty in the long aftermath of the 
2008 financial crisis promotes a cautious approach, whereby investments would 
continue to be dominated by lower counterparty risk considerations, resulting in 
relatively low returns compared to borrowing rates. 

6.2 The investment performance of the Treasury Management function is dependent 
upon a number of factors, including the size of available investment balances; the 
market interest rates available; the timing of capital spend; the restrictions placed 
on the Council by its approved Lending List.

Page 47



6.3 The Council achieved an overall average interest rate of 0.75% on its investment 
portfolio. This compared favourably with short-term market benchmarks as shown 
in the table below:

Comparator Average 
Rate Q1 

Average 
Rate Q2

Average 
Rate Q3

Average 
Rate Q4

Average 
2019/20

SMDC Total 0.81% 0.76% 0.75% 0.72% 0.75%
SMDC Total Long-term (>364 days) 1.18% 1.18% 1.18% 1.16% 1.17%
SMDC Total Short-term (<364 days) 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
SMDC Total Short-term (instant access) 0.66% 0.63% 0.62% 0.60% 0.63%
Link Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 Day Rate 0.57% 0.56% 0.57% 0.43% 0.53%
*LIBID 3 Month Rate 0.68% 0.64% 0.64% 0.55% 0.63%
*LIBID 6 Month Rate 0.78% 0.69% 0.74% 0.61% 0.70%
*LIBID 12 Month Rate 0.91% 0.75% 0.83% 0.69% 0.80%

Base Rate at end of period 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.10%
*LIBID (London Interbank Bid Rate) 

6.4 The investment portfolio was held on a short-term basis (up to 1 year) through 
2019/20, in line with professional advice issued by Link.  The Council continues to 
take advantage of the market rates on offer to public bodies by part-nationalised 
banks.  

7 Investment Portfolio & Interest Yield

7.1 The Council manages its investments in-house, investing only with institutions that 
meet the Council’s approved minimum lending criteria. The Council currently invests 
for a range of periods from overnight up to 1 year, dependent on cash flows, its 
interest rate view, the interest rates on offer and durational limits as set out in the 
Treasury Strategy.  

7.2 The lending list is constructed based on credit ratings provided by the three main 
credit agencies supplemented by additional market data, using the Link 
Creditworthiness analysis. 

7.3 Money was invested with 6 institutions during the year. All investments were placed 
in line with the Council’s approved lending limits (see Annex A for current lending 
limits) and Treasury Management Strategy.  

7.4 The table below summarises the institutions that the Council invested funds with 
during the financial year.  It also indicates the average daily investment, interest 
earned and the associated average interest rates. Interest rates vary depending on 
the length and timing of investments. The investment funds include those held short-
term in the Council’s instant access business reserve accounts.  The average daily 
investment during 2019/20 was £11.96million.

Page 48



Financial Institution Country of 
Domicile

Interest 
Earned

(£)

Average 
Daily 

Investment 
(£)

Rate of 
Return 

(%)

Money Market Funds UK 31,720 4,349,041 0.73
Lloyds Bank Plc UK 23,466 2,002,740 1.17
Bank of Scotland UK 9,732 1,530,597 0.64
NatWest Bank Plc UK 3,913 1,435,868 0.27
Santander UK 12,077 1,207,763 1.00
Handelsbanken Plc UK 9,322 1,434,077 0.65
Total 90,230 11,960,086 0.75

7.5 The budget was set with an expectation of interest rate rises during the year up to 
1.25%. For the majority of the year the Bank of England base rate remained at 
0.75% and therefore investment yields were lower than anticipated. In addition the 
Council’s use of internal borrowing to fund the borrowing requirement means that 
the investment portfolio is also reduced. The investment income for the year was 
£90,950 (including £720 from local loans), which is £26,630 under the budget for 
the year of £117,580.

7.6 Investments held at the 31st March 2020 are shown in the table below:
 

Financial Institution Country of 
domicile

Group / Parent Principal Amount 
Invested (£)

Money Market Funds UK Money Market Funds £4,600,000
NatWest Bank Plc UK Royal Bank of Scotland Group £2,129,806

Santander UK Santander UK £1,200,000
Lloyds Bank Plc UK Lloyds Banking Group £1,000,000
Handelsbanken UK Handelsbanken UK £800,000

Total Principal Invested £9,729,806

7.7 Investments held as at 31st March 2020 are for a period of one year or less. The 
exposure to fixed and variable interest rates is shown below:

31st March 
2020 Actual

Fixed Rate £2,200,000
Variable Rate £7,529,806

TOTAL £9,729,806

Page 49



7.8 In addition to the instant access and short-term fixed investments held, the Council 
committed to providing a £5million debenture and £20million loan facility to Ascent 
LLP (the joint venture company set up to deliver affordable housing across the 
District). The table below details the balances held and interest rates charged on 
each drawdown and the associated interest earned in 2019/20:

Debenture to Ascent LLP £ Interest Rate
Balance at 1st April 2019 5,000,000
Fully drawn -
Balance at 31st March 2020 5,000,000 2.00%
Interest earned in 2019/20 100,000

Loan to Ascent LLP £ Interest Rate
Balance at 1st April 2019 14,000,000
  No drawdowns in the year 0
Balance at 31st March 2020 14,000,000 3.52%*
Interest earned in 2019/20 492,996

* Interest rates include a 1.25% risk premium

7.9 The interest received on the Ascent Debenture was on target against the budget; on 
the loan there was a small surplus of £8,730 as the rolling 1 year tranches were 
refinanced in October and November at £7million each at slighltly higher rates 
(linked to the PWLB rates on the day) than anticipated in the budget.

7.10 The £14million Loan is a priority debtor therefore would be repaid in full should the 
loan mature.  The £5million Debenture owed to the Council and similarly the 
£5million Debenture owed to Your Housing by Ascent are of equal priority and are 
expected to be subject to an impairment.

8 Compliance with Treasury Limits

8.1 Treasury Limits and Prudential Indicators were set within the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2019/20.  The outturn for the Indicators is shown in Annex B.

8.2 The Council has not borrowed more than or in advance of its needs purely in order 
to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.

8.3 There has been no rescheduling of debt during the year.

Page 50



ANNEX A
Current Lending Limits

UK Banks

Category Principal Limit Maximum Length Portfolio (% of 
highest balance*)

Purple £4.0m Up to 2 years 20%
Orange £3.6m Up to 1 year 18%

Red £3.0m Up to 6 months 15%
Green £2.6m Up to 100 days 13%

Yellow** £4.0m Up to 5 years 20%
No Colour n/a Not to be used n/a

International Banks

Category Principal Limit Maximum Length Portfolio (% of 
highest balance)

Purple £3.0m Up to 2 years 15%
Orange £2.4m Up to 1 year 12%

Red £2.0m Up to 6 months 10%
Green £1.6m Up to 100 days 8%

No Colour Not to be used

Nationalised Banks

Category Principal 
Limit

Maximum 
Length

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance*)

Blue £4.0m Up to 1 year 20%
NatWest (the Council’s main 

bank account) £6.0m Up to 1 year 30%

Group Limits

Category

Portfolio 
(% of 

highest 
balance*)

Individual 
Principal 

Limit

Portfolio % 
increased by 

50%

Group 
Principal 

Limit

Blue 20% £4.0m 30% £6.0m
Purple 20% £4.0m 30% £6.0m
Orange 18% £3.6m 27% £5.4m

Red 15% £3.0m 23% £4.6m
Green 13% £2.6m 20% £4.0m

Money Market Funds
£3.6m for up to 1 year per fund (£4.6m max overall)

Page 51



ANNEX B

2019/20 2019/20

Original Provisional 
Outturn

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

£'000 £'000

Capital Expenditure:

   General Fund 4,705 2,605

   Commercial activities (industrial unit sites) 80 65

Reduction in general fund capital expenditure owing to …

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream (4.22%) (5.06%)

Increased net income on financing costs during the year due to the lower cost of continuing internal 
borrowing

Gross borrowing requirement

   Total Gross Borrowing (31st March) 16,785 10,000

   Borrowing Requirement 1,886 645

Variance in gross borrowing due to internally borrowing £4m on Ascent Loan and £2.8m general fund 
borrowing requirement
Variance in borrowing requirement due to reprofiled programmes

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March 18,318 16,828

Annual change in Capital Financing Requirement 1,835 598

Page 52



2019/20 2019/20

Original Provisional 
Outturn

TREASURY MANAGEMENT  INDICATORS

£'000 £'000

Authorised Limit for external debt Strategy Actual

    Borrowing 30,984 10,000

    Other long term liabilities 0 0

TOTAL 30,984 10,000

Operational Boundary for external debt

     Borrowing 29,484 10,000

     other long term liabilities 0 0

     TOTAL 29,484 10,000

Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 365  
days 3,500 0

Maturity structure of fixed rate 
borrowing during 2019/20

Upper limit in 
2019/20 Strategy

2019/20 Actual 
Maturity Profile

under 12 months 100% 75%

12 months and within 2 years 100% 25%

2 years and within 5 years 100% 0%

5 years and within 10 years 100% 0%

10 years and above 100% 0%

Maturity structure of variable rate 
borrowing during 2019/20

Upper limit in 
2019/20 Strategy

2019/20 Actual 
Maturity Profile

under 12 months 100% 0%

12 months and within 2 years 100% 0%

2 years and within 5 years 50% 0%

5 years and within 10 years 0% 0%

10 years and above 0% 0%

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Information 
Digest

To: Audit & Accounts Committee
Date: 3rd July 2020

Treasury Management Update
Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Treasury Management Mid-Year Update 
Report to 31st May 2020

Councillor Sybil Ralphs
Leader

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner

Page 55

Agenda Item 8.4



1. Reason for the Report

1.1. The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management performance in 2020/21 in compliance with the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and generally accepted good practice.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31st May 
2020.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the 
Council in February 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, one 
of which is to produce at least one mid-year operational report.

3.2. This report comprises the following:

 The latest interest rate forecast;

 Investment income earned to date and projected for 2020/21;

 The current investment portfolio;

 The current and projected borrowing requirements with projected borrowing 
costs for 2020/21; and

 Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2020/21.

3.3. The main headlines include:

 The Bank of England base rate has reduced to 0.10% in March 2020 with 
no expectation for any increase in the medium term.

 The Covid-19 pandemic and resulting economic crisis is considered in terms 
of the impact on treasury management, in particular the cash flows.

 A shortfall of £22,100 is forecast against the investment income budget due 
to reducing interest rates and continuing internal borrowing.

 Income on the Ascent debenture and loan is forecast on target pending 
changes for the Ascent Delivery model and any new loan arrangement.

 The borrowing costs budget to support the existing Ascent loan balance and 
a potential general fund borrowing requirement is currently forecast to be 
£97,000 under budget owing to lower interest rates and the use of internal 
borrowing.

Page 56



 The average return on investments was 0.46% during the period 1st April 31st 
May. This compares favourably to short-term industry benchmarks.

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £14.6million spread across six 
separate institutions as at 31st May 2020.

 The Council’s current level of debt is £13million at an average annual 
borrowing rate of 0.80%.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the Council’s main 
priorities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council for 2020/21 to date and the projected outturn. As such 
it is a statement of fact and there are no options.

Claire Hazeldene
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

‘Treasury Management – Governance & 
Scrutiny Arrangements’ (Audit & Accounts 
Committee September 2009)

‘Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2020/21’ (Audit & Accounts 
Committee February 2020)

Keith Pointon
Interim head of Finance
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 57



Appendix A

Treasury Management Update 
31st May 2020

1. Introduction 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management

4. Investment Income

5. Investment Portfolio

6. Borrowing Position

7. Prudential Indicators

Page 58



1. Introduction 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management which recommends that Members should be updated on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year.

1.3. The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising the 
treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual treasury 
management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury management reports.  
Decisions taken by the Audit & Accounts Committee are reported to full Council.

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was 
approved by Council on 14th February 2020. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 31st May 2020 and projects forward for the 
remainder of the financial year.

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 
bank rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast: 

% Jun-
20

Sep-
20

Dec-
20

Mar-
21

Jun-
21

Sep-
21

Dec-
21

Mar-
22

Bank Rate 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
5yr PWLB 

rate 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10

10r PWLB 
rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB 
rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB 
rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50

2.2. Link’s interest rate forecast has been updated following the Bank of England base 
rate cut from 0.75% to 0.25% on 11th March and again to 0.10% on 19th March 
2020. The forecast was made at the end of March 2020 and took into account 
the known situation with regard to coronavirus at the time and its potential impact 
on economies around the world. Link has pragmatically reduced the forecast to 
two years ahead to acknowledge the exceptional level of uncertainty at the 
current time.

3. Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management

Page 59



3.1. As a period of lockdown was implemented in March 2020 due the Coronavirus 
pandemic, there were immediate concerns about the Council’s cash flow over the 
coming year(s) due to the resulting economic crisis affecting the Council’s main 
sources of income including Council Tax, Business Rate and fees and charges. 

3.2. Cash flow will be affected by deferrals of payment plans, shifting the cash flow to 
later in the year than is usual; increase in recipients of Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme as more residents become eligible, reducing the Council’s 
income; increase in instances of non-payment, and an increase in business rates 
reliefs, which is replaced by the equivalent income from the government via a 
grant, but could change the cash flow profile of these amounts.  It is also impacted 
by a reduction in general fees and charges – some of which have reduced during 
the lockdown period – such as car parking fees.

3.3. Liquidity is a primary concern in Treasury Management, subordinate only to 
security, therefore a decision was made that all fixed investments should be 
returned to instant access accounts upon maturity and no new fixed investments 
would be taken until a clearer understanding of the cash flow situation had been 
gained.

3.4. Conversely, on 1st April the Council received £25million from Central Government 
to distribute under the Business Grants Scheme. This cash flow level is 
significantly greater than the Council’s normal levels, therefore it was necessary 
to increase all the Counterparty limits set in the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for 2020/21 in order to accommodate these balances in the short term 
as the scheme was administered and payments could be made. The increase in 
these limits is show in detail at section 5.

3.5. Central government also allowed Councils to delay payments of the Business 
Rates share which eased cash flow in the first quarter, but will unwind as we 
progress throughout the year. 

4. Investment Income 

4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st May 2020 totalled £15,900. The 
Council has budgeted to receive £88,510 in investment income in 2020/21. The 
budget was set with an expectation of higher interest rates than the current 
environment: 0.75% for the first three quarters of the year and a further potential 
rate rise to 1.00% at the end of the year. 

4.2. The Bank of England base rate reductions in March have resulted in cuts to all of 
the instant access accounts. If a decision is made to include fixed investments in 
the portfolio again, the yield opportunities are also significantly reduced, therefore 
may not improve income receipts. The investment portfolio is also reduced due 
to the continuation of internal borrowing, though this still represents a net saving 
in lieu of the external borrowing costs. Therefore a shortfall of £22,100 is forecast 
on the investment income budget.

Page 60



4.3. The average interest rate achieved on the Council’s investments is shown in the 
table below; this compares favourably to the LIBID rates, the recognised industry 
benchmark:

Comparator Average Rate 
Apr-May

SMDC Average 0.46%
SMDC long-term fixed (>364 days) 1.02%
SMDC short-term fixed (<364 days) 0.44%
SMDC instant access 0.43%
Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 day rate 0.00%
*LIBID 3 month rate 0.30%
*LIBID 6 month rate 0.43%
*LIBID 12 month rate 0.59%
Base Rate at the end of the period 0.10%

                      *LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

Ascent Joint Venture

4.4. The Council continues to provide two facilities to the joint venture company 
Ascent Housing LLP: the Debenture of £5million earns interest at 2%. This 
£100,000 income is on target against the budget; interest on the Loan of 
£14million is forecast at an average rate of 3.91% across the two £7million rolling 
1 year tranches, earning interest income of £546,910. This is assumed to be on 
target until more is known about any changes to arrangements with Your Housing 
during the year (outlined in the Cabinet Report 18th June 2019) and/or the 
forecast of interest rates on the tranche roll dates in October and November.

4.5. The existing £14million Loan is a priority debtor therefore would be repaid in full 
should the loan mature.  The £5million Debenture owed to the Council and 
similarly the £5million Debenture owed to Your Housing are of equal priority and 
are expected to be subject to an impairment.

5. Investment Portfolio

5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria.  The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 31st May 2020 totalled £14,556,000, as shown in the table 
below:

Financial Institution
Country 

of 
Domicile

Amount
Maximum 

recommended lending 
duration

Interest 
rate at end 
of period

Average 
Maturity

Santander UK £5,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.40% Instant Access
Handelsbanken UK £3,700,000 ORANGE (12 months) 0.35% Instant access
Aberdeen MMF UK £2,200,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.39% Instant access
Federated MMF UK £1,400,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.37% Instant access
NatWest Bank UK £1,256,000 BLUE (12 months) 0.30% Instant access
Lloyds Bank UK £1,000,000 ORANGE (12 months) 1.05% 364 days

TOTAL £14,556,000
NB: MMF = Money Market Fund

5.2. The average annual level of funds available for investment up to 31st May 2020 
was £19.7million. 

Page 61



5.3. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Link, is shown by colour 
banding in the table below:

5.4. Group limits are also applied:

Portfolio % increased 
by 50%

Per TMSS 
2020/21

Extraordinary counterparty 
limit increase: Covid-19

Category Group 
Principal Limit Group Principal Limit

BLUE £6.9m £13.8m
PURPLE £6.9m £13.8m
ORANGE £6.2m £12.4m

RED £5.2m £10.4m
GREEN £4.6m £9.2m

Money Market Funds £6.9m £13.8m

6. Borrowing Position

6.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘affordable borrowing limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement.

6.2. The Council’s outstanding borrowing totalled £13,000,000 all with other Local 
Authorities:

Lender External 
Borrowing

Current Average 
Interest Rate

Remaining 
Maturity period

Local Authority Loans £13,000,000 0.80% Up to 3 years

Per TMSS 2020/21
Extraordinary 

counterparty limit 
increase: Covid-19

Colour Banding Maximum Duration 
of Investment

UK 
Banks

International 
Banks UK Banks

PURPLE Up to 2 years £4.6m £3.4m £9.2m
ORANGE Up to 12 months £4.1m £2.7m £8.2m

RED Up to 6 months £3.4m £2.3m £6.8m
GREEN Up to 100 days £2.9m £1.8m £5.8m

BLUE (Part nationalised 
financial institutions) Up to 1 year £4.6m n/a £9.2m

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 year £6.9m n/a £13.8m

Money Market Funds Up to 1 year £4.6m n/a £9.2m

Page 62



6.3. The ‘operational boundary’ (£32,675,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£34,175,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing to fund the capital 
programme, plus any short-term liquidity requirements.  They were set through the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement to account for the general fund 
borrowing requirement; an allowance for borrowing to cover short-term liquidity; 
and funding of the loan to the Joint Venture Company, Ascent. The current level of 
borrowing is well within prudential limits.

6.4. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing so far during the year. Maturity and refinancing 
activity is summarised in the table below:

Amount Lender Interest 
Rate Term Month

Maturing Loans
£1,500,000 Guildford Borough Council 1.78% 5 years May
£1,500,000 Total maturities

Refinancing*
£2,000,000 Wigan Council 0.68% 6 months May
£1,500,000 Guildford Borough Council 1.30% 2 years May
£3,500,000 Total refinancing

Refinancing in advance
Maturity
£2,000,000 Broxbourne Borough Council 0.88% 6 months July
Refinancing*
£3,000,000 Oxfordshire County Council 1.25% 3 years July

£3,000,000 Net refinancing increase
*Includes refinancing from previous 
year maturities

6.5. There is a further £7.5million of external debt maturing during the year between 
November and January. It is anticipated that the full amount will be refinanced on 
a short term basis, pending the outcome of the Your Housing loan arrangements. 
The treasury team will monitor interest rate movements and opportunities with a 
view to securing loans at the appropriate time and level and remove refinancing 
uncertainty.

6.6. The £332,730 budget for borrowing costs was based on externally funding the full 
Ascent loan balance of £14million and the potential for £4.2million of new loans to 
be taken mid-year to support the general fund borrowing requirement. £1million of 
the Ascent loan balance continues to be internally funded. This has decreased from 
the £4million internally funded at year end to add some certainty to the cashflow 
and debt portfolio and take advantage of low rates on offer. There is no external 
borrowing for other general fund projects which remain internally funded. Therefore 
an underspend of £97,000 is currently forecast against the budget. The treasury 
team will continue to monitor refinancing, internal and new external borrowing 
requirements and opportunities considering the movement in interest rates and the 
cost of carry of any borrowings taken.

Page 63



6.7. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure maturity 
dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a substantial re-
financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates are high. The graph 
below details the maturity profile of current loans.

Less 
than 1 
year

1 - 2 
years

2 - 5 
years

6 - 10 
years

11- 20 
years

21 - 30 
years

31 - 40 
years

41 - 50 
years

Greater 
than 50 
years

-

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

Debt Maturity Profile

6.8. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to amend 
the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of 
volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the risk.  The treasury 
team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for debt rescheduling to 
achieve overall financial benefit to the Council.

6.9. No rescheduling has taken place during 2020/21 to date.  The Council will work 
with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking account of the 
premium the Council would expect to pay on early redemption compared to the 
potential interest savings.  

7. Prudential Indicators

7.1. The Council has operated within the treasury management and prudential 
indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020/21 and 
complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.

Page 64



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Audit & Accounts Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: Treasury Management Update

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Interim Executive Director 
& Chief Finance Officer
Emily Bennetts - Finance Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-specific 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Treasury Management Mid-Year Update 
Report to 30th September 2020

1. Reason for the Report

1.1. The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management performance in 2020/21 in compliance with the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and generally accepted good practice.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 30th 
September 2020.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the 
Council in February 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, one 
of which is to produce at least one mid-year operational report.

3.2. This report comprises the following:

 The latest interest rate forecast and comment on the impacts of Covid-19;

 Investment income earned to date and projected for 2020/21;

 The current investment portfolio;

 A capital programme update and projected borrowing requirements with 
associated borrowing costs for 2020/21; and

Page 65

Agenda Item 8.5



 Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2020/21.

3.3. The main headlines are:

 There is no expectation for any increase to the Bank of England base rate 
within the medium term.

 The Covid-19 pandemic and resulting economic crisis is considered in terms 
of the impact on treasury management, in particular the cash flows.

 A shortfall of £48,720 is forecast against the investment income budget due 
to reducing interest rates.

 An income shortfall of £40,410 is forecast on the Ascent loan interest due to 
lower interest rates than forecast; and the Debenture income is forecast on 
target. This is subject to change pending the Ascent Delivery model review 
and any new loan arrangement.

 The borrowing costs budget to support the existing Ascent loan balance and 
general fund borrowing requirement is currently forecast to be £132,830 
under budget owing to low Intra-Local Authority borrowing interest rates 
available.

 The average return on investments was 0.25% during the quarter 2. This 
has reduced from 0.40% in quarter 1.

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £16.3million spread across seven 
separate institutions as at 30th September 2020.

 The Council’s external debt is forecast to be £16million by the end of the 
year at an average annual borrowing rate of 0.88%.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the Council’s main 
priorities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council for 2020/21 to date and the projected outturn. As such 
it is a statement of fact and there are no options.

6. Implications

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None

Page 66



6.2. Workforce

None

6.3. Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and 
Equality Policies.

6.4. Financial Considerations

Included throughout the report

6.5. Legal

None

6.6. Climate Change

Ethical Investing under Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) criteria is 
considered within the report

6.7. Internal and External Consultation

None

6.8. Risk Assessment

There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury 
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or deposits. 
For this reason, the Council engages the services of external Treasury 
Management advisors, Link Asset Services (‘Link’).

Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s 
formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That Strategy includes a 
number of risk management features such as the overriding priority that security 
of deposit takes precedence over return on investment.

Claire Hazeldene
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

‘Treasury Management – Governance & Scrutiny 
Arrangements’ (Audit & Accounts Committee 
September 2009)

‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020/21’ 
(Audit & Accounts Committee February 2020)

Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Treasury Management Update 
30th September 2020

1. Introduction 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management

4. Investment Income

5. Investment Portfolio

6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position

7. Prudential Indicators

Page 69



1. Introduction 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management which recommends that Members should be updated on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year.

1.3. The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising the 
treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual treasury 
management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury management reports.  
Decisions taken by the Audit & Accounts Committee are reported to full Council.

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was 
approved by Council on 14th February 2020. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 30th September 2020 and projects forward 
for the remainder of the financial year.

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 
bank rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast: 

% Sep-
20

Dec-
20

Mar-
21

Jun-
21

Sep-
21

Dec-
21

Mar-
22

Jun-
22

Sep-
22

Dec-
22

Mar-
23

Bank Rate 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

5yr PWLB rate 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10

10r PWLB rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.01 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB 
rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB 
rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50

2.2. Link’s interest rate forecast has the Bank of England base rate continuing at 
0.10% for the short- to medium-term; and PWLB rates continuing at the current 
levels. 

2.3. Uncertainties surround the future Bank of England base rate in the potential for 
negative interest rates. Link has not included these in the forecast, but their 
average earnings forecast shows that Councils can expect an average return of 
near 0%. The PWLB consultation is due to be reported on imminently and the 
outcome of this may impact the borrowing rates on offer.

3. Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management

Page 70



3.1. The impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s cash flows is being carefully monitored: 
the timing of some cash flows is changed in comparison to usual trends with 
deferrals of payment plans for Council Tax and Business Rates; some grant 
payments having an earlier payment profile; some cash flows have been reduced, 
such as car parking income; and the grant schemes which the Council is 
delivering has the effect of unusual cash inflows followed by the outflows over a 
period; all of which results in a very different cash flow profile.

3.2. ‘Liquidity’ of cash flows being a primary concern in Treasury Management, 
subordinate only to ‘Security’, it was decided in the first quarter than no new fixed 
term investments would be made. As the cash flow forecast has developed during 
the last 6 months the Council has made investments in 95 day notice accounts 
which offer a good level of liquidity with slightly improved ‘Yields’ compared to 
instant access accounts.

3.3. Whilst the Council was in receipt of the £25million grant from Central Government 
to distribute under the Business Grants Scheme, it was necessary to increase all 
the Counterparty limits set in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 
2020/21 in order to accommodate these balances in the short term as the scheme 
was administered and payments could be made. When cash balances had 
returned to more normal levels, the treasury management team reverted to the 
original approved Counterparty Limits. This is shown in more detail at section 5.

3.4. Some of the Council’s borrowing requirement which was previously supported by 
internal borrowing (i.e. temporarily from the Council’s reserves, which depressed 
the investment portfolio but made savings overall on borrowing costs) has now 
been externalised through borrowing from other Local Authorities. The borrowing 
costs in the Local Authority market are currently very low and the external debt 
supports liquidity on the Council’s cash flows. 

4. Investment Income 

4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 30th September totalled £28,710. 
The Council has budgeted to receive £88,510 in investment income in 2020/21. 
The budget was set with an expectation of higher interest rates than the current 
environment: 0.75% for the first three quarters of the year and a further potential 
rate rise to 1.00% at the end of the year. 

4.2. During the year interest rates on accounts have fallen significantly, initially 
following the Bank of England base rate reductions in March to 0.10%, then 
compounded by market sentiment pricing in potential negative rates. This is 
illustrated in the table below with the reduction in average interest rates from 
quarter 1 to quarter 2. Therefore, a shortfall of £48,720 is forecast on the 
investment income budget.

Page 71



4.3. The average interest rate achieved on the Council’s investments compared to 
industry benchmark rates shows the Council is still performing relatively well:

Comparator Average Rate 
Q1

Average Rate 
Q2

SMDC Average 0.40% 0.25%
SMDC long-term fixed (>364 days) 1.05% 1.05%
SMDC short-term fixed (<364 days) 1.00% 0.52%
SMDC instant access 0.36% 0.14%
Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 day rate 0.00% 0.00%
*LIBID 3 month rate 0.26% 0.00%
*LIBID 6 month rate 0.40% 0.02%
*LIBID 12 month rate 0.56% 0.14%
Base Rate at the end of the period 0.10% 0.10%

                      *LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

Ascent Joint Venture

4.4. The Council continues to provide two facilities to the joint venture company 
Ascent Housing LLP: the Debenture of £5million earns interest at 2%, the 
associated £100,000 income is on target against the budget; interest on the Loan 
of £14million is forecast at an average rate of 3.61% across the two £7million 
rolling 1 year tranches, earning interest income of £504,978. This represents a 
shortfall of £40,410 against the budget due to lower PWLB rates on the tranche 
roll dates than expected at budget setting stage. 

4.5. Any changes to arrangements with Your Housing during the year (outlined in the 
Cabinet Report 18th June 2019) may also impact this income. The existing 
£14million Loan is a priority debtor therefore would be repaid in full should the 
loan mature.  The £5million Debenture owed to the Council and similarly the 
£5million Debenture owed to Your Housing are of equal priority and are expected 
to be subject to an impairment.

Page 72



5. Investment Portfolio

5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria.  The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 30th September totalled £16,259,000, as shown in the table 
below:

Financial Institution
Country 

of 
Domicile

Amount
Maximum 

recommended lending 
duration

Interest 
rate at end 
of period

Average 
Maturity

Aberdeen MMF UK £4,600,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.09% Instant access

Handelsbanken UK £4,100,000 ORANGE (12 months) 0.10% Instant access

Santander UK £3,400,000 RED (6 months) 0.60% 95 day notice

Federated MMF UK £1,200,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.06% Instant access

Lloyds Bank UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months)
(formerly Orange) * 1.05% 364 days

Lloyds Bank UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months)
(formerly Orange) * 0.20% 95 day notice

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £500,000 RED (6 months) 0.30% 95 day notice

NatWest Bank UK £459,000 BLUE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access

TOTAL £16,259,000
NB: MMF = Money Market Fund
* Lloyds reduced to RED (6 months) on 21st October following downgrade by Moody’s

5.2. The average annual level of funds available for investment up to 30th September 
2020 was £17.1million.

5.3. New 95 day notice accounts have been opened with Barclays and Lloyds Bank 
in order to obtain an improved yield compared to money market funds and instant 
access accounts available, but with an acceptable period of liquidity in these 
uncertain times.

 The Barclays account is linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing 
Programme which covers “a variety of thematic projects including energy 
efficiency, renewable energy, green transport, sustainable food, agriculture 
and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas emission reduction”. 
In the 2020-21 TMSS there was reference to Ethical Investing under 
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) considerations; and the 
Councils would consider investment opportunities with ESG links provided 
that the Security, Liquidity, Yield (SLY) criteria are met. Barclays is 
categorised by Link as a ‘Red’ counterparty and therefore meets the 
Council’s primary treasury management criterion of ‘Security’; the 95 day 
notice period is acceptable and therefore meets the second criterion of 
‘Liquidity’; and the account pays the same rate as the ‘normal’ or ‘non-green’ 
deposit with this institution (0.30% reducing to 0.10% if notice is given), 
therefore meets the third criterion ‘Yield’. With all these factors considered, 
the opportunity was taken to invest in this ‘green’ deposit. 

Page 73



 The Lloyds Bank 95 day notice account pays 0.20% with no reduction in 
interest rate during the notice period. This account pays the same as a 12 
month fixed deposit currently, so offers much better liquidity for the same 
yield, with a strongly rated counterparty.

5.4. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Link, is shown by colour 
banding in the table below with the TMSS approved counterparty limits. Due to 
unexpected cash balances in the Council’s accounts relating to Covid grants at 
the start of the year, treasury management was operated with extended 
counterparty limits between 1st April and 31st August. As cash balances returned 
to more normal levels, these limits reverted to the approved TMSS levels on 1st 
September:

5.5. Group limits are also applied where counterparties are in the same group as each 
other:

Portfolio % increased 
by 50%

Approved 
TMSS 2020/21

Extraordinary counterparty 
limit increase applied from 1st 

April to 31st August due to 
Covid-19 excess cash balances

Category Group 
Principal Limit Group Principal Limit

BLUE £6.9m £13.8m
PURPLE £6.9m £13.8m
ORANGE £6.2m £12.4m

RED £5.2m £10.4m
GREEN £4.6m £9.2m

Money Market Funds £6.9m £13.8m

Approved TMSS 2020/21

Extraordinary 
counterparty limit 

increase applied from 
1st April to 31st 

August due to Covid-
19 excess cash 

balances
Colour Banding Maximum Duration 

of Investment
UK 

Banks
International 

Banks UK Banks

PURPLE Up to 2 years £4.6m £3.4m £9.2m
ORANGE Up to 12 months £4.1m £2.7m £8.2m

RED Up to 6 months £3.4m £2.3m £6.8m
GREEN Up to 100 days £2.9m £1.8m £5.8m

BLUE (Part nationalised 
financial institutions) Up to 1 year £4.6m n/a £9.2m

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 year £6.9m n/a £13.8m

Money Market Funds Up to 1 year £4.6m n/a £9.2m

Page 74



UK Sovereign Rating and Counterparty Duration

5.6. The Ratings agency Moody’s downgraded the UK’s credit rating on Friday 16th 
October to Aa3 from Aa2, the third downgrade in eight years. This does not 
directly affect the Council’s investment strategy or activity as the TMSS states 
that ‘when investing in institutions outside the UK, only banks and building 
societies located in countries with a minimum sovereign rating of ‘AAA’ will be 
used’, i.e. a change to the UK sovereign rating has no immediate impact. 

5.7. However, the ratings and outlooks of UK banks include an assessment of the 
willingness and capacity of a government to support banks in case of need. The 
lower UK sovereign debt rating has therefore reduced the uplift in some banks’ 
ratings. Banks affected currently in use by the Council were Bank of Scotland, 
Lloyds Bank, Santander and NatWest. The only resulting changes to the 
suggested durations on Link’s counterparty list were Bank of Scotland and Lloyds 
reducing to Red (6 months) from Orange (12 months), which also had the effect 
of reducing the counterparty limit to £3.4million (£4.6m Group) from £4.1million 
(£6.2million Group) previously.

5.8. The Council has an existing 12 month fixed term investment with Lloyds Bank. 
As this is a fixed term deposit, there is no option to terminate before the maturity 
date on 12th February 2021, but as this is less than six months away, there is no 
concern; the Council also has a 95 day notice account with Lloyds, but again this 
is within the new maximum duration limit; and the amounts held with these 
counterparties do not exceed the new (reduced) counterparty limits, so no action 
was required. It is also important to stress that these changes were solely 
because of the action on the UK sovereign rating, not a reflection of deteriorating 
conditions at the banks themselves. 

5.9. Any future downgrades of other counterparties are likely to have minimal impact 
on the Council’s investment activity as the majority of the current investment 
portfolio is instant access or 95 days in duration which fits in the lowest ‘Green’ 
creditworthiness duration limit of 100 days. All institutions used by the Council 
are currently ‘Red’ or higher.

Other investment opportunities

5.10. The treasury team continually monitors the investment opportunities available to 
the Council including instant access accounts; notice accounts; money market 
funds; fixed term deposits and Certificates of Deposit. These are all with rated 
institutions (banks, building societies, money market funds). Another option is to 
invest the Council’s funds in the intra-local authority market. This type of 
investment is included in the Council’s TMSS for investments for up to 12 months 
at the ‘yellow’ (up to 5 years) counterparty limit (currently £4.6m) as a specified 
investment; and up to 5 years at the >365 day limit  (currently £3.5m) as a non-
specified investment. The ‘yellow’ counterparty limit is in line with Link’s view, as 
all local authorities are deemed to be AAA rated, secure and ultimately backed 
by government. 

Page 75



5.11. As interest rates on more traditional investments continue to fall, the intra-local 
authority market offers some good yields particularly to the longer end, but it is 
worth being prepared to enter this market in any case to provide a wider 
counterparty spread as conversations continue about the threat of negative rates.

5.12. In order to make an investment, the treasury team would contact one of the 
Council’s brokers and make them aware of the amount of investment, duration 
and yield the Council would like to obtain; they then match this up with other local 
authority counterparts who need to borrow funds. There is no charge for this 
brokerage service when lending funds.

5.13. In the current climate, with Covid uncertainty and the impact on the Council’s 
financial position and cash flows, the treasury team propose to consider 
investment opportunities with any local authority of less than 1 year when funds 
are available and these present a better yield than available elsewhere. The 
treasury team has discussed this with Link and they are comfortable with this 
approach, reiterating that all local authorities are secure and supported by 
government.

6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position

Capital Programme Update

6.1. The table below provides current projections for capital expenditure and funding:
TMSS 2020/21 

Estimate
Current Estimate (includes 

19/20 carry forwards)
Total Capital Expenditure £6,005,000 £2,906,000

Funded by:
    Capital Receipts £93,000 £50,000
    External Funding £1,227,000 £520,000
    Reserves £436,000 £621,000
2020/21 Net Financing Requirement £4,249,000 £1,715,000

Capital Financing Requirement
  Opening CFR £16,995,000 £16,828,000
    PLUS Net Financing Requirement £4,249,000 £1,715,000
    LESS Minimum Revenue Provision (£63,000) (£59,000)
  Closing CFR £21,181,000 £18,484,000

6.2. The Net Financing Requirement on 2020/21 spend is now estimated at 
£1,715,000: the reduction is mainly due to expected fleet procurement delivery 
dates now expected in 2021-22 and other programmes being delayed due to the 
effects of the Covid 19 situation.

6.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a prudential indicator set to ensure 
that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable. The CFR represents 
the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from 
either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council's 
underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure and is derived by 
aggregating specified items for the Council's balance sheet. On the basis of the 
latest forecasts, the Council's capital investment plans remain affordable.

Page 76



Borrowing Position

6.4. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘affordable borrowing limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved TMSS.

6.5. The Council’s external borrowing at the start of the year was £10million with 
£4million internal borrowing on the Ascent Loan and the balance of the general 
fund capital financing requirement. By the end of the year external borrowing is 
forecast to be £16million: £14million relating to the Ascent Loan and £2million to 
the general fund capital financing requirement. This approach ensures that cash 
flow is available for liquidity as required due to the uncertainty surrounding Covid 
19 expenditure and reduced income. It also takes advantage of the extremely 
cheap funding available during the year from other local authorities. 

6.6. External borrowing activity so far and anticipated during the year is summarised in 
the table below:

Amount Lender Interest 
Rate Term Month Month

Matured Loans (Q1&2) Maturing
£1,500,000 Guildford Borough Council 1.78% 5 years May
£2,000,000 Broxbourne Borough Council 0.88% 6 months July

£1,000,000 Police & Crime Commissioner
for West Midlands 2.05% 5 years August

£4,500,000 Total 
Pending Maturities (Q3&4)
£2,000,000 Wigan Council 0.68% 6 months November
£1,500,000 Brighton & Hove Council 0.99% 1 year November
£2,000,000 Gloucestershire County Council 0.95% 1 year November
£2,000,000 Hyndburn Borough Council 0.92% 1 year January
£7,500,000 Total 
Refinanced Loans (inc. maturities from previous years) Starting Arranged
£2,000,000 Wigan Council 0.68% 6 months May May
£1,500,000 Guildford Borough Council 1.30% 2 years May May
£3,000,000 Oxfordshire County Council 1.25% 3 years July June

£1,000,000 Police & Crime Commissioner
for West Midlands 0.40% 1 year August August

£1,000,000 Mid Devon District Council 0.22% 1 year October September
£2,000,000 St Helens Council 0.85% 2 years October August
£2,000,000 Bridgend County Brough Council 0.15% 6 months November October
£2,000,000 Lichfield District Council 0.25% 1 year November September
£1,000,000 Ryedale District Council 0.25% 1 year December September

£1,500,000 Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue 
Service 0.50% 18 months January November

£16,500,000 Total 
Refinancing to be arranged/ potential new loan
£1,000,000 Local Authority c.0.60% 18 months c. January

£6,000,000 Net increase in external borrowing

6.7. The ‘operational boundary’ (£32,675,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£34,175,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing to fund the capital 
programme, plus any short-term liquidity requirements.  They were set through the 

Page 77



Treasury Management Strategy Statement to account for the general fund 
borrowing requirement; an allowance for borrowing to cover short-term liquidity; 
and funding of the loan to the Joint Venture Company, Ascent. The current level of 
borrowing is well within prudential limits.

6.8. The maturity profile of the loans is considered when undertaking external borrowing 
to ensure maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates are high. 
The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.

Oct-
20

Dec-2
0

Fe
b-21

Apr-2
1
Jun-21

Aug-2
1
Oct-

21

Dec-2
1

Fe
b-22

Apr-2
2
Jun-22

Aug-2
2
Oct-

22

Dec-2
2

Fe
b-23

Apr-2
3
Jun-23

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

£3,500,000

Maturity Profile

6.9. The average external borrowing for the year is forecast to be £13,832,000 with 
maturity periods from 6 months to 3 years at an average interest rate of 0.88%, 
all with other local authorities.

6.10. The £332,730 budget for borrowing costs was based on externally funding the full 
Ascent loan balance of £14million and the potential for £4.2million of new loans to 
be taken mid-year to support the general fund borrowing requirement, which has 
now reduced to £1.7million. Therefore, an underspend of £132,830 is forecast 
against the budget. The treasury team will continue to monitor refinancing, internal 
and new external borrowing requirements and opportunities considering the 
movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any borrowings taken.

6.11. The treasury team, along with Link, monitors opportunities to reschedule debt, i.e. 
reorganise existing debt in such a way as to amend the debt repayments, reduce 
the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest 
payable, in order to manage risk and achieve overall financial benefit to the Council 
taking account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on early redemption 
compared to the potential interest savings. No debt rescheduling has taken place 
during the year.

7. Prudential Indicators

7.1. The Council has operated within the treasury management and prudential 
indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020/21 with the 

Page 78



extension to counterparty limits during high covid-19 cashflows explained above 
and complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Audit & Accounts Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: 2019/20 Annual Review of the Effectiveness 
of the Audit & Accounts Committee

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak - Head of Audit

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 CIPFA Checklist – Self Assessment of 
Good Practice
Appendix 2 CIPFA Assessment Tool - Evaluating 
the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee
Appendix 3 Audit & Accounts Committee Terms of 
Reference

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 Having considered the report on the Annual Review of the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit, members of the Audit & Accounts Committee will be aware of the 
requirement to comply with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015. As part of 
this process of assurance, best practice suggests that an annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Audit & Accounts Committee should be undertaken.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee consider and approve the annual review of the effectiveness 
of the Audit & Accounts Committee.

2.2 That the committee make an appropriate recommendation to Council to approve 
Audit & Accounts Committee’s Terms of Reference.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report and accompanying appendices will assist the Audit & Accounts 
Committee in their consideration and discussion on the effectiveness of this 
Committee, and how this is to be measured. CIPFA guidance published in 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8.6



March 2018 sets out the basis for the self assessment.

3.2 The committee are requested to discuss these documents and form agreement 
on their content.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of the Audit & Accounts Committee informs 
the Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use 
of financial and other resources to ensure value for money.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police 2018 Edition
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015

John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 82



6. Detail

6.1 An audit committee’s effectiveness should be judged by the contribution it 
makes to, and the beneficial impact it has on, the authority’s business. Since it 
is primarily an advisory body, it can be more difficult to identify how the audit 
committee has made a difference. Evidence of effectiveness will usually be 
characterised as ‘influence’, ‘persuasion’ and ‘support’. A good standard of 
performance against recommended practice, together with a knowledgeable 
and experienced membership are essential requirements for delivering 
effectiveness.

6.2 Using the recommended practice in the CIPFA Audit Committees Practical 
Guidance should help the authority to achieve a good standard of performance. 
Included within this guidance is a checklist ‘Self-Assessment of Good Practice’ 
which will support an assessment against recommended practice to inform and 
support the audit committee. 

6.3 Also contained within the guidance is an assessment tool ‘Evaluating the 
Effectiveness of the Audit Committee’ to help audit committee members to 
consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. 
To be considered effective, the audit committee should be able to identify 
evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements.

6.4 The draft self-assessment checklist (Appendix 1) and the draft assessment tool 
(Appendix 2) have been completed by the Head of Audit in conjunction with the 
Chief Executive. The committee are requested to discuss these documents and 
form agreement on their content. 

6.5 The self-assessment checklist and assessment tool scores reflect the work that 
was done to develop the committee structure, skills and knowledge following a 
knowledge and skills framework self-assessment in August 2016. Councillors 
may be aware that following this self-assessment, changes were made to the 
structure and Terms of Reference of the committee in order to enhance existing 
arrangements and fill knowledge gaps.

6.6 It is planned to use the self-assessment tool developed by CIPFA as part of their 
publication ‘Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and 
Police 2018 Edition’ to identify and evaluate the overall knowledge and skills of 
the current members of the committee, to identify training needs and to enable 
the committee to perform effectively.

6.7 As the committee will be considering and discussing the effectiveness of the 
Audit & Accounts Committee, it is appropriate for the Audit & Accounts 
Committee’s Terms of Reference (TOR) to be considered also. The current TOR 
are based on the CIPFA suggested TOR. For ease of reference the Audit & 
Accounts Committee’s Terms of Reference as agreed at the July 2019 Audit & 
Accounts Committee are attached at Appendix 3.

6.8 The committee is requested to make an appropriate recommendation to Council 
to approve Audit & Accounts Committee’s Terms of Reference.

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1
AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE

SELF-ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE 2019/20
This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in 
CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police and the 
CIPFA practical guidance. Where an audit committee has a high degree of performance 
against the good practice principles then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly 
based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in 
developing an effective audit committee.

A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee 
work programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual audit report.

Good practice questions Yes Partly No
Audit committee purpose and governance 

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? 

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? 
 (Applicable to local government only.)



3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the 
committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement?



4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and 
accepted across the authority?



5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in 
meeting the requirements of good governance?



6 Are the arrangements to hold the Committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactorily?



Functions of the committee
7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the 

core areas identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement?

 good governance 

 assurance framework, including partnerships and 
collaboration arrangements



 internal audit 

 external audit 

 financial reporting 

 risk management 

 value for money or best value 

 counter-fraud and corruption 

 supporting the ethical framework 

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the 
committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate 
consideration has been given to all core areas?



Page 85



Good practice questions Yes Partly No

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified 
in CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it would be 
appropriate for the committee to undertake them?



10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, 
are plans in place to address this?

N/A

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not taking 
on any decision-making powers that are not in line with its core 
purpose?



Membership and support
12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of 

the committee been selected?
This should include:
 separation from the executive
 an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the 

membership
 a size of committee that is not unwieldy
 consideration has been given to the inclusion of at least 

one independent member (where it is not already a 
mandatory requirement)







13 Have independent members appointed to the committee 
been recruited in an open and transparent way and 
approved by the full council or the PCC and chief constable 
as appropriate for the organisation?



14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge 
and skills?



15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with 
briefings and training?



16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against 
the core knowledge and skills framework and found to be 
satisfactory?



17 Does the committee have good working relations with key 
people and organisations, including external audit, internal 
audit and the CFO?



18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the 
committee provided?



Effectiveness of the committee
19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from 

those interacting with the committee or relying on its work?


20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and 
engagement from all the members?



21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders and 
managers, including discussion of audit findings, risks and 
action plans with the responsible officers? 



Page 86



Good practice questions Yes Partly No

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the 
improvement of governance, risk and control and are these 
acted on?



23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding 
value to the organisation?



24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas 
of weakness?



25 Does the committee publish an annual report to account for its 
performance and explain its work?



Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE
EVALUATING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 2019/20

Assessment key
5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively 

supporting improvements across all aspects of this area.  The improvements made 
are clearly identifiable.

4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively 
supporting improvement across some aspects of this area.

3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area.  
There is some evidence that demonstrates their impact but there are also significant 
gaps.

2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the 
impact of this support is limited.

1 No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements 
in this area.

Page 89



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment:
5 – 1
See key above

Promoting the principles of good 
governance and their 
application to decision making.

Supporting the development of a local code of governance.
Providing robust review of the AGS and the assurances 
underpinning it.
Working with key members/PCC and chief constable to improve 
their understanding of the AGS and their contribution to it.
Supporting reviews/audits of governance arrangements.
Participating in self-assessments of governance arrangements.
Working with partner audit committees to review governance 
arrangements in partnerships.

Local Code of 
Governance
Annual review & 
approval of AGS.
Review of progress 
against AGS action 
plan.
Review of IA & EA 
findings.

3

Contributing to the development 
of an effective control 
environment.

Actively monitoring the implementation of recommendations from 
auditors.
Encouraging ownership of the internal control framework by 
appropriate managers.
Raising significant concerns over controls with appropriate senior 
managers.

Review of progress 
against all IA 
recommendations.
Robust challenge 
of IA findings.

4

Supporting the establishment of 
arrangements for the 
governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks.

Reviewing risk management arrangements and their 
effectiveness, e.g. risk management benchmarking.
Monitoring improvements.
Holding risk owners to account for major/strategic risks.

Approval of RM 
Strategy.
Review and 
challenge of RM 
updates.

4

Advising on the adequacy of the 
assurance framework and 
considering whether assurance 
is deployed efficiently and 
effectively.

Specifying its assurance needs, identifying gaps or overlaps in 
assurance.
Seeking to streamline assurance gathering and reporting.
Reviewing the effectiveness of assurance providers, e.g. internal 
audit, risk management, external audit.

Review of 
effectiveness of IA, 
EA, RM, Treasury 
Management & 
AGS.

3

P
age 90



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment:
5 – 1
See key above

Supporting the quality of the 
internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence.

Reviewing the audit charter and functional reporting 
arrangements.
Assessing the effectiveness of internal audit arrangements, 
providing constructive challenge and supporting improvements.
Actively supporting the quality assurance and improvement 
programme of internal audit.

Approval of IA 
Charter.
Robust challenge 
of IA work.
Annual 
assessment of 
effectiveness of IA.

5

Aiding the achievement of the 
authority’s goals and objectives 
through helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance 
arrangements.

Reviewing how the governance arrangements support the 
achievement of sustainable outcomes.
Reviewing major projects and programmes to ensure that 
governance and assurance arrangements are in place.
Reviewing the effectiveness of performance management 
arrangements.

Review and 
approval of AGS 
process.
Governance, risk, 
control and 
assurance 
arrangements 
reviewed.

3

Supporting the development of 
robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money.

Ensuring that assurance on value for money arrangements is 
included in the assurances received by the audit committee.
Considering how performance in value for money is evaluated as 
part of the AGS.

Review of IA & EA 
VFM assurances.
Review and 
approval of AGS 
process.

3

Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good 
governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruptions risks.

Reviewing arrangements against the standards set out in the 
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
(CIPFA, 2014).
Reviewing fraud risks and the effectiveness of the organisation’s 
strategy to address those risks.
Assessing the effectiveness of ethical governance arrangements 
for both staff and governors.

Review & Approval 
of CF&C Strategy 
& RIPA policy.
Review of 
arrangements for 
fraud risks to be 
developed.

2

P
age 91



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and provide 
evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment:

5 – 1
See key above

Promoting effective public 
reporting to the authority’s 
stakeholders and local 
community and measures to 
improve transparency and 
accountability.

Improving how the authority discharges its responsibilities for 
public reporting; for example, better targeting at the audience, 
plain English.
Reviewing whether decision making through partnership 
organisations remains transparent and publicly accessible and 
encourages greater transparency.
Publishing an annual report from the committee.

All meetings open 
to the public. 
Agendas and 
reports distributed 
to media.

2

P
age 92



APPENDIX 3

Terms of Reference – Audit & Accounts Committee

Composition
1 The Audit & Accounts Committee shall consist of the following membership:

 9 councillors appointed by the Council for such term of office as determined 

by the Council.

 3 independent non-voting members appointed to attend and participate at 

committee meetings.

2 The Committee shall report direct to Council on the matters contained in its 

Terms of Reference (below) in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and 

Procedure Rules contained therein.

Statement of Purpose
1 The Audit & Accounts Committee is a key component of Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council’s corporate governance. It provides an independent 

and high-level focus on the audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that 

underpin good governance and financial standards. 

2 The purpose of the Audit & Accounts Committee is to provide independent 

assurance to the members of the adequacy of the risk management framework 

and the internal control environment. It provides independent review of 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council’s governance, risk management and 

control frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and annual 

governance processes. It oversees internal audit and external audit, helping to 

ensure efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place. 

Governance, risk and control
1 To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good 

governance framework, including the ethical framework and consider the local 

code of governance. 

2 To review and approve the Annual Governance Statement and consider 

whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, 

taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and 

Page 93



APPENDIX 3

effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and 

control. 

3 To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 

assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements. 

4 To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately 

addresses the risks and priorities of the council. 

5 To approve the risk management strategy and monitor the effective 

development and operation of risk management in the council.

6 To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the 

committee. 

7 To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the 

implementation of agreed actions. 

8 To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council from 

fraud and corruption. 

9 To approve and monitor the counter-fraud and corruption strategy and 

whistleblowing policy, actions and resources.

10 To approve the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) policy and 

procedures and monitor the Council’s use of RIPA powers. 

11 To recommend to Council the approval of the Annual Treasury Management 

Strategy and Annual Treasury Management Report and scrutinise all treasury 

management reports.

Internal audit
1 To approve the internal audit charter.

2 To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers 

of internal audit services and to make recommendations. 

3 To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s 

resources requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance and 

any work required to place reliance upon those other sources. 

4 To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and 

resource requirements. 

5 To make appropriate enquires of both management and the head of internal 

audit to determine if there any inappropriate scope or resources limitations. 

Page 94



APPENDIX 3

6 To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from 

additional roles or responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the head of 

internal audit. To approve and periodically review safeguards to limit such 

impairments.

7 To consider reports from the head of internal audit on the internal audit’s 

performance during the year, including the performance of external providers 

of internal audit services. These will include:

 Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of 

concern and action in hand as a result of internal audit work. 

 Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 

Programme. 

 Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government 

Application Note, considering whether the non-conformance is significant 

enough that it must be included in the Annual Governance Statement. 

8 To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report:

 The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and the results of 

the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that supports the 

statement – these will indicate the reliability of the conclusions of internal 

audit. 

 The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control together with the 

summary of the work supporting the opinion – these will assist the 

committee in reviewing the Annual Governance Statement. 

9 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 

10 To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit 

has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 

unacceptable to the authority or there are concerns about progress with the 

implementation of agreed actions.

11 To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in 

particular, to the external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place 

at least once every five years.  

Page 95



APPENDIX 3

12 To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the Annual 

Governance Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations.

13 To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the head 

of internal audit, including the opportunity for a private meeting with the 

committee. 

External audit
1 To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the 

external auditor’s annual assessment of its independence and review of any 

issues raised by PSAA or the authority’s auditor panel as appropriate.

2 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the report 

to those charged with governance.

3 To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

4 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 

gives value for money. 

5 To commission work from internal and external audit. 

6 To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between 

external and internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies. 

Financial reporting 
1 To review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to 

consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and 

whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the 

audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council. 

2 To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 

3 In relation to the approval of the annual statement of accounts, only the elected 

members of the Council shall be entitled to vote upon any such resolution, in 

accordance with the relevant statutory provisions concerning the regulation and 

control of an authority’s finances by elected members alone.

Page 96



APPENDIX 3

Accountability arrangements
1 To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, 

conclusions and recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness 

of their governance, risk management and internal control frameworks; financial 

reporting arrangements, and internal and external audit functions. 

2 To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in 

relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in 

meeting its purpose. 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.1 Full Council - 26 February 2020
	2.2 Council Assembly - 9 September 2020
	8.1 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel - Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019-2020
	Appendix A

	8.2 Standards Committee - Annual Report
	Appendix A

	8.3 Audit and Accounts Committee - Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20
	8.4 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update 31 May 2020
	8.5 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update - 30 September 2020
	Appendix A

	8.6 Audit and Accounts Committee - 2019/20 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit & Accounts Committee
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


